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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (inthousands except share and per share data)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Statement of Operations Data:

Net revenues $51,408 $41,397 $36,697 $29,476 $24,120
Gross profit 40,307 30,253 24980 19,252 15,248
Total operating expenses 36,853 29138 23,970 24,444 30,641
Income (loss) from operations 3,454 1,115 1,009 (5,192) (15,393)
Netincome (loss) . 3,952 1275 1,062 (5080) (15,087)

Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $0.17 $0.06 $0.06 $(0.28) $(1.03)
Diluted $0.16 $0.05 $0.05 $(0.28) $(1.03)
Weighted average number of shares:

Basic 22,715,724 22,073,885 18,900,861 17,909,492 14,761,741
Diluted 24,878,652 23,650,408 20,308,658 17909,492 14,761,741
NET REVENUE GROWTH (inthousands) BOTTCM LINE IMPROVEMENT (inthousands)

Net Income (Loss)
Online Advertising  [_]Merchandise [ Publ./Other
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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

| am pleased to report that 2005 was a ye
income for 2005 on a 24% revenue incr:
approach critical mass. Advertisers areinc

we provide and the community that has for

Our position as the premier wedding res
bridal market. During 2005, we began b
2004. The Nest enables us to extend the

of marriage, life stages where consumers

ar of continuing strong growth for our Company. Our threefold gain in net
ease demonstrates the leverage we have with our business model as we
reasingly recognizing the value of our audience. The content and services

med around our brand are key to our past and future performance.

ource in the country has enabled us to expand our horizons beyond the
uilding a unique newlywed brand on TheNest.com, a site launched late in
relationship with our members from engagement through the initial years

spend billions of dollars each year. Our mission is twofold. First, it is to

identity the needs of our members and provide them with access to the widest selection of products and services.

And second, itis to provide our marketing

are looking for related products or services.

2005 Financial Highlights

Some of the financial highlights of the past

Online advertising increased 47%

and an increase in average spendin

Publishing and other revenue grev

H

partners with access to our audience at the precise moment our members

year include:

from 2004, driven by the expansion of our national and local client base

g by vendors.

v 21%, primarily as a result of increases in advertising pages sold in our

national publication, The Knot Weddings Magazine, and in our regional publications.

Netincome rose over 200% to $4.

O million, or $0.17 per basic and $0.16 per diluted share, from $1.3 million,

or $0.06 per basic and $0.05 per diluted share in 2004.

Our balance sheet at December 3

million.

Our advertising and publishing segments

, 2005 reflects cash and short-term investments of approximately $29.2

grew from a strong toundation set in 2004. However, our merchandising

business only began to recover from a diséppointing performance in 2004. Sales of wedding supplies at retail rose

H

approximately 5% in 2005, which was offset by a decrease in revenue from registry products and for wholesale




supplies as we eliminated a number of marginal accountsin 2005. These effcrfs resultéd inimproved merchandising
margins. In July, we launched a new e-commerce platform which is desfgned to fmprove the shopping experience on
our site and, over time, our merchandiﬁirlag capability to our members; With this new platform and continued focus on
improving product selection, we h;)pé to achieve more posifivé revenue results for the merchandising business in the

year ahead.

We should also note that our bottom line in 2005 would have been considerably higher without $4.8 million in
professional fees we incurred defending ourselvesin our onéoing patent litigation and related claims. This litigation

is discussed more fully in the accompanying Form 10-K report.

Expanding Our Reach in All Média

1

The gains we made in local and national accounts reflect the positive results we deliver to our advertisers. Our
replenishing audience signs up typically 14 months before their wedding date, and a majority of our members opt in
for additional communication from us, clearly making The Knot one of the most éffective marketing platforms in the

bridal industry.

Our success in building The Knot is due, in part, to our commitment to developing brand extensions in all forms of
media. Since the inception of our Company 10 years ago, we have never spent any money 6n advertising. Even to this
day, we ére able to avoid the increasing costs of online advertising by building awareness for our brand through our
strategy of reaching our audience wherever they |60k for wedding information. Carley Roney, duf Editor-in-Chief,

continues to be one of the most sought after wedding experts on all the national television'networks.

We recently published two new books -- The Knot Guide for the Groom and The Knot Guide for the Mother of the
Bride. With the release of these two books, we now have seven wedding planning books, which are sold in bookstou:es
across the country and through online retailers. Additionally, we distribute over 1.8 million copies of our national and
regional magazines. We have a syndicated new'sp"aper column, and our Real Weddings from The Khot cable television

series runs on the Oxygen network.
Building New Life Stage Brands

We are utilizing our multi-platform strategy as we build The Nest, our newlywed website. This unique brand strategy
has attracted a continuous flow of highly sought-after consumers, and it is this brand strategy and the resulting

audience that we look to leverage for The Nest. The appeal of The Knot and The Nest to advertisers is very similar.




First and foremost, our sites are the only m\‘\edia vehicles to have developed intense relationships with this highly
desirable audience at these critical life stages. We have the largest database of engaged couples whose contact
information is captured months before the actual wedding date. When the wedding and honeymoon dates are

passed, our Knot members are automaticall)ﬁ transterred to The Nest.

\

y

|

Becoming parents for the first time is anothe\'r major life change for newlyweds. We closely monitor the community
of first time parents growing on The Nest and believe there will be a lucrative opportunity for servicing our audience
as they enter this next significant life stage. Cur member surveys show that most plan and do indeed have their first
child within three years of their wedding. Fi\lrstborns receive the lion's share of spending on baby products and
services and set buying patterns for new parents for years to come. We have a replenishing supply of newlyweds and

can identity a first time parent before any other media company giving us an enormous advantage as we look to

expand into the pre-natal media space.

Forming New Strategic Partnerships

Another element of our brand building strategy has been developing strategic partnership alliances. In 2005, we
added a number of well known partners inclutJing Target and Zales, We are also leveraging the value of our brands
in new arenas. American Express and The Knot announced a strategic partnership in December with the launch ot
two new co-branded, annual fee-free consumer credit cards, The Knot Credit Card from American Express,

developed tor couples planning their wedding, and The Nest Credit Card from American Express, designed

specifically for newlyweds.

|
With the expansion of our business beyond our core wedding market and with our new strategic partnerships, we
believe we have embarked on the next important growth stage for our Company. The talent and dedication of the
entire Knot team have made 2005 a year of substantial achievement and have helped set the stage for further
accomplishments in the year ahead and beyond. Their enthusiasm and hard work are greatly appreciated as is the

continuing support of our stockholders.

Sincerely,

David Liu ]
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer\
May1,2006 |

and President
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THIS REPORT MAY CONTAIN PROJECTIONS OR OTHER FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS REGARDING FUTURE EVENTS OR THE FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORM-
ANCE OF THE KNOT. THESE STATEMENTS ARE ONLY PREDICTIONS AND REFLECT THE
CURRENT BELIEFS AND EXPECTATIONS OF THE KNOT. ACTUAL EVENTS OR RESULTS
MAY DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE CONTAINED IN THE PROJECTIONS OR
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AS A RESULT OF CERTAIN FACTORS, AS MORE
FULLY DESCRIBED IN THIS SECT ION AND ELSEWHERE IN THIS REPORT. THE KNOT
UNDERTAKES NO OBLIGATION TO UPDATE PUBLICLY ANY FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS FOR ANY REASON EVEN JF NEW INFORMATION BECOMES AVAILABLE
OR OTHER EVENTS OCCUR IN THE FUTURE.

PART I
Item 1. Business

Overview

The Knot is a leading lifestage rnedia and services company providing products and services to

couples planning their weddings and flfture lives together. Our website, at www.theknot.com, is the most
trafficked wedding destination onhn% and offers comprehensive content, extensive wedding-related
shopping, an online wedding gift reglnstry and an active community. The Knot is the leading wedding
content provider to MSN and Comcast We publish The Knot Weddings Magazine, which features
editorial content and a shopping dlrectory format which covers every major wedding planning decision
and is distributed to newsstands and bookstores across the nation. We also publish The Knot Weddings
regional magazines in 16 markets in the United States and The Knot Real Weddings in two additional
local markets. We also author books ”on wedding related topics. In November 2004, we launched our
newlywed website, The Nest, at www thenest.com, the first online destination for the newly-married

audience. We are based in New YorkI and have several other offices across the country. ‘
We commenced operations in May 1996 and recorded our first revenues in September 1996,

immedlately following the launch of ‘Hour first online property. Qur website, at www.theknot.com was
he Knot Registry, our online gift registry, in November 1998. In
idalink.com, an Internet wedding supply store. In March 2000, we
f regional wedding magazines. In January 2005, we acquired the
gs LLC, including the websites at www.greatboyfriends.com and

eferral-based online dating services supported by subscriptions.

launched in July 1997. We launched T
July 1999, we acquired the assets of Br
acquired Weddingpages, a publisher o

business and assets of GreatBoyfrien
www.greatgirlfriends.com, which are 1

Industry Background
The Wedding Industry

Each year, approximately 2.2 million couples get married in the United States. According to an
independent research report, the dom?stic wedding market generates approximately $72 billion in retail
sales annually, including gifts purchased from couples’ registries. Presumed to be a once-in-a-lifetime
occasion, a wedding is a major milest‘one event and, therefore, consumers tend to allocate significant
budgets to the wedding and related p}lrchases. Weddings also generate substantial revenues for travel
services companies. The average amount spent on a wedding in the United States is approximately
$22,000, excluding the honeymoon.

Planning a wedding can be a stressful and confusing process. Engaged couples must make
numerous decisions and expensive purchases. A typical wedding requires decisions and planning
relating to bridal registries, invitatiolns wedding gowns and wedding party attire, wedding rings,
photographers, music, caterers, ﬂowers honeymoons and more. In addition to the number of decisions
faced by engaged couples, the fixed date and the emotional significance of the event intensify the stress.
For the majority of engaged couples, the process of planning a wedding is an entirely new one. They do
not know where to find the necessary information and services, how much services or goods should cost
or when decisions need to be made. These planning decisions are further complicated because many

couples choose to have their weddir“lgs in locations other than where they live. Researching and
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soliciting local wedding services from distant locations without traveling and making an enormous time
commitment is extremely difficult. Today’s to-be-weds are seeking reliable resources and information to
assist in their planning and purchase decisions. '

Vendors and advertisers highly value to-be-weds as a consumer group. Replenished on an annual
basis, wielding substantial budgets and facing a firm deadline, engaged couples are ideal recipients of
advertisers’ messages and vendors’ products and services. During the six months prior to and the six
months following a wedding, the average couple will make more buying decisions and purchase more
products and services than at any other time in their lives. The challenges and obstacles that engaged
couples face make them especially receptive to marketing messages. Therefore, a disproportionate
amount of advertising revenues are generated per subscriber by bridal magazines.

The wedding market also represents significant opportunities for the retail industry. Engaged
couples receive gifts from an average of 200 guests, most of whom are spending between $70 and $100.
Because items are selected by the engaged couple but paid for by their guests, price sensitivity is
minimal and registry products are rarely discounted by retailers. Registry for products in all categories
has grown, prompting many national retailers—previously without registries—to enter the gift registry
market. Weddings also generate substantial revenues for travel services companies. Honeymoon travel
generates an estimated $4.5 billion annually.

The Internet and the Wedding Industry

To-be-weds are seeking a comprehensive resource to assist in their preparation and planning for a
wedding. Because of its global reach and capacity to transmit information rapidly, the Internet
represents an ideal medium over which to-be-weds can easily access information and communicate with
the widely-dispersed providers of local wedding resources.

According to a 2004 Census report prepared by the National Center for Health Statistics, the
median age was 27 for first-time brides and 29 for first-time grooms, placing them in the demographic
age group, 18 to 34 years, which currently comprises approximately 33.5% of all Web users. As Internet
use continues to increase, engaged couples are turning to online resources as the first place they look for
wedding products, information and registry services. A USA Today poll found that 80% of the more
than 2 million couples that married in 2001 used the Internet to help plan their wedding. Recognizing
this trend, traditional providers of wedding resources are offering their services and products online.
Like their offtine equivalents, however, these online offerings are single-service/product focused. To-be-
weds continue to search for a comprehensive solution to their information, planning and purchasing
needs at a single destination.

The Knot Services
We offer both online and offline services to the wedding market. Our services include:

Online Services

Relevant Wedding Content. Weddings are information-intensive events requiring extensive research,
planning and decision-making. The Knot website attracts and retains a loyal user base by providing
creative ideas, up-to-date information and useful resources to assist in the process of planning a
wedding. The site provides future brides and grooms with a searchable database that draws on
thousands of articles on weddings, including planning advice, etiquette, Q & A, real wedding stories,
tips on getting engaged, fashion, beauty, grooms, the wedding party and honeymoons. Each of the
channels offers articles, ideas and photo slideshows covering a wide range of styles, perspectives,
budgets, traditions and ethnicities.

Interactive Tools. The “My Knot™* area on the website organizes a member’s profile information,
interactive tool results, online notebook and local message boards, allowing him or her to easily access
all of the couple’s wedding planning information in one place. The numerous interactive wedding
planning tools include wedding checklists, a budgeter, a guest list manager, personal wedding Web pages
and an online notebook, which may store favorite gowns, articles, photos, vendors, honeymoons,
wedding supplies and other planning information.
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Directed Search. The Knot website offers specific tools to assist in the shopping for key elements of
a wedding. The Gowns area of the site is a searchable bridal gown database with more than 20,000
gown images from over 200 de&gner% plus searchable databases for bridesmaids, mother-of-the-bride
and flower girl dresses, bridal accesspnes including headpieces, shoes and purses, engagement and
wedding rings and tuxedos. The site also offers search tools for honeymoon resorts, jewelry and tabletop

products. Because the tool results are paid inclusions, the content is thorough, detailed and up-to-date.

Extensive Local Resource Listings‘[ The Local Resource area on The Knot website provides access

to the local wedding market through 67 online city and regional guides that host profiles for over 13,000
local vendors, such as reception halls, tands florists and caterers. Each local city guide provides a listing
of the area’s marriage license offices zfnd upcoming bridal shows, a question and answer section with a
local wedding expert and local messaée boards, where to-be-weds can discuss vendors in their market.
Region-specific articles on many wedding topics including real wedding stories about local couples are
also featured in the city guides. Through our local market expansion, we are able to influence many of
the wedding-related decisions and pu;;rchases made on the local level.

Active Membership and Commun
high degree of member involvemen
services. To-be-weds actively seek fo

ity Participation. The Talk area on The Knot website generates a
through chats, message boards and personalized interactive
rums to exchange ideas and ask questions. We encourage and

promote active participation within our online community. The Knot community features 24-hour chat
rooms which allow our members to interact with other couples, as well as our own experts, on wedding
planning issues and concerns. In addltlon to being topic- spec1ﬁc the message boards can be
regionalized, so a member can seek advice from other members in the same geographical area. Other
interactive services allow users to prep(are and modify their wedding budget, compile and manage their
guest list and create personalized checklists and Web pages. Additionally, we send out several
newsletters and emails to our membelrs, many of which are targeted with specific information for the
stage where these members are in their wedding planning process. Other newsletters and emails are
focused on specific topics, such as hor”xeymoon deals, upcormng bridal events or a new feature on our
site.

We recognize the importance of mamtammg confidentiality of member information, and we have
established a privacy policy to protecb’ personal information. Our current privacy policy is set forth on
our sites, and we are a licensee of the TRUSTe Privacy Program. Our policy is not to tell any third party
any member’s personal identifying mformatlon but we may share aggregated information about our
members with other pre-screened orgamzat1ons who have specific direct mail product and service offers
we think may be of interest to our me]inbers We may share aggregated member information with third
parties, such as zip code or gender. In addition, we may use information revealed by members and
information built from user behavior |to target advertisements, content and email.

Convenient, Comprehensive Shopping Experience. We integrate our informative content with
shopping services, which range from v“veddlng gifts to a comprehensive array of supplies that relate to
the wedding itself. We have created two shopping areas on The Knot website called The Knot Gift

Registry Center and The Knot Wed<iH1ng Shop.
The Knot Gift Registry Center o”ffers a large selection of china, crystal and flatware through our
partnership with Michael C. Fina. In addltxon earlier this year, we announced a new partnership with

Target Corporation under which Target Club Wedd became our premier registry provider allowing our
members easy access to Target Club Wedd’s extensive Tegistry assortment.

We sell wedding supplies direct to consumers through our integrated shopping destination, The
Knot Wedding Shop. We offer over {‘one thousand products, including disposable cameras, wedding
bubbles and bells, candy and cookles ring pillows, toasting flutes, reception decorations, table
centerpieces, goblets and glasses, garters and unity candles. These highly specialized items are often
difficult to find through traditional retail outlets, and the purchase of these items is often left to the last
minute. We offer personalization opti‘lons for many of our wedding supplies such as toasting glasses,
cake servers, napkins, ribbon and wedding attendant gifts and favors. We have launched our own line of
Knot-branded wedding supplies called The Knot Wedding Collections and our own line of wedding-
themed apparel. The Knot Wedding Collecnons which can be personalized as well, include ring pillows,
flower girl baskets, guest books and Hpens. Our exclusive “To Be Wed Wear” apparel includes tees,
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tanks, hats, sweats and intimates, enabling the bride to wear her status in style. Consumers can place
orders online, through a toll-free number, fax or via mail, 24-hours a day.

In 2005, we launched ShopForWeddings.com. ShopForWeddings.com is our separate online store
for wedding supplies, which we developed in order to attract additional users and generate further
revenues. In addition, we sell wedding supplies directly to other select bridal retailers through our
wholesale wedding supplies division whose products are featured online at our wholesale website,
WeddingSuppliesDirect.com. Participating bridal retailers have recognized that The Knot is a one-stop
supplier for these items. We fulfill all retail and wholesale wedding supplies orders from our Redding,
California facility.

Offline Services

The Knot Weddings Magazine. We publish The Knot Weddings Magazine semiannually. This 800
plus page national publication is a comprehensive, searchable shopping guide providing directories of
wedding gowns, fine jewelry, china, home products, invitations, wedding supplies, honeymoon packages
and local wedding vendors. The gown section, which features over 900 dresses from the industry’s top
designers, is organized alphabetically by designer, and each gown image includes essential information
that is not found in other bridal magazines—the price range, a detailed description, a directory of store
listings, and a coordinating URL that directs readers to The Knot website for additional dresses by the
same designer. Also featured are an extensive array of photos of wedding party attire and accessories,
including bridesmaid, mother-of-the-bride and flower girl dresses, veils, shoes, and tuxedos. Understand-
ing the importance of localized wedding-planning information, we include a unique tool in the
magazine—the local resource directory. Brides can comb through over 1,200 detailed local vendor
listings of photographers, reception halls, florists, caterers, entertainers and other wedding vendors
providing the products and services required for their weddings. We sell The Knot Weddlngs Magazine
through newsstands and bookstores and on our website.

Local Wedding Magazines. We publish The Knot Weddings regional magazines in 16 local markets
and The Knot Real Weddings in two additional markets, all semiannually. The Knot’s regional magazines
combine national editorial content with up-to-date, region-specific information, including sections
featuring real weddings within the market, making these publications a must-have wedding planning
companion for engaged couples.

The Knot Book Series. The Knot offers a library of up-to-date wedding books, authored by Carley
Roney and published by Random House and Chronicle Books. Our two-part planning series features
extensive information on everything a bride and groom needs to know when planning their wedding
and includes worksheets, checklists, etiquette and answers to frequently asked questions.

These popular titles include The Knot Book of Wedding Gowns, The Knot Book of Wedding
Flowers, as well as The Knot Bride’s Journal, providing a place for every bride to capture thoughts and
inspirations for her wedding day and beyond.

The latest additions to our collection include The Knot Guide for the Mother of the Bride, guiding
mothers through every step of the process from dress shopping to the bridal shower, while The Knot
Guide for the Groom takes guys step-by-step through the grooms’ traditional duties.

Integrated Media Programs

We provide national and local advertisers with targeted access to couples actively seeking
information and advice and making meaningful spending decisions relating to all aspects of their
weddings. We also offer advertisers and sponsors an opportunity to establish brand loyalty with first-
time purchasers of many products and services.

Editorial content and advertising are often integrated on our site. For example, an article about
wedding rings might feature an advertisement for a jeweler or a special area on beauty may feature a
sponsored tip by a consumer products company. Instead of traditional banners and text links, our
sponsors usually select our custom-developed marketing programs that offer special features, including
interactive tools. Companies can also enter into arrangements to exclusively sponsor entire editorial
areas or special features. We also conduct market research on behalf of advertisers by surveying our
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audience. We may offer Sponsors a«%ldrtronal online promotional events such as a sweepstakes,
newsletter and direct e-mail programs, or inclusion of their special offers in our membership gateway. In
addition, we now offer national advertisers the opportunity to sponsor content on The Knot TV, a

streaming video -channel that broadcasts 24/7 on our website. Advertisers can promote their products

and services through commercials or
placement while delivering brand mes

custom-created programs that give the advertiser contextual
sages.

With our expansion into local n”rarkets and the further development of The Knot Weddmgs
Magazine, we have expanded the scope of the integrated marketing programs we offer to our online
advertisers to include many offline features For example, a program for an online sponsor could also
include regional or national print advertising or customized inserts in our magazines. We have designed
category specific standardized advertising programs in The Knot Weddings Magazine for Jewelry, Health
and Beauty, Tabletop, Invitations, Retall Home, Finance and Travel. These programs allow a broad
range of advertisers in these categones}to gain targeted national exposure through a combination of our
online programs and the national magazine. We have also expanded the programs that we are able to
offer our local print advertisers. Local vendors can supplement their print advertisements with profiles
and sponsorship badges within their appropriate online city guide, and they can also reach their markets
through targeted local newsflash emails. Also,: we offer programs to local vendors that include

advertising placement in The Knot Wﬂda'mgs Magazine.

The Knot Strategy

Our strategy is to expand our posmon as a leadlng lifestage media and services company providing
comprehensive planning and -other 1pfomat10n products and services to couples planning their
weddings and future lives together. KHey elements of our business strategy include the following:

Build Strong Brand Recognition. Building a dominant brand is critical to attracting and expanding
both our online and offline user base! and securing our leading position in the bridal market.

|

We promote our brand through aggressive public relations: outreach, including television
appearances by Carley Roney, our edltor in chief and lead wedding expert. During 2003, she appeared
on more than 30 national and local telev1s1on programs including NBC’s TODAY, ABC’s The View, Live
with Regis & Kelly, CBS’s The Early Show, VH1’s All Access: Celebrity Weddings, CNN Headline News,
Inside Edition and Fox News Report. (‘arleys presentations cover a variety of wedding topics from the

most desirable engagement ring to the
all of which relate to information or
consulted for her wedding expertise

latest trends in wedding fashions or wedding registry must-haves,

services available on our sites. In addition, Carley is frequently

by the nation’s top print publications including The New York.

Times, Wall Street Journal, USA Tods y, InStyle, Vogue and Cosmopolitan.

In January 2003, “Real Weddings| from The Knot”—our very own branded televised miniseries—
premrered on the Oxygen Network. The Knot collaborated with Oxygen in the creation and production
of the series, which followed couples pﬂlanmng through their wedding process in the weeks leading up to
their nuptials. In January 2004, we debuted a wedding gown fashion program called “Bridal Fashion
Exclusive from The Knot” also on O”xygen along with a second series of “Real Weddings from The
Knot”. Oxygen has continued to renew these programs- annually, including five new episodes of real
weddings and two bridal fashion programs which' aired in January 2006. Through these shows, we

expand the awareness of our brand and services to a broad national audience.

In August 2004, The Knot partnered with Comcast, the nation’s leading cable and broadband
provider, to launch “The Knot Weddmgs ” the first-ever all-weddings Video-on-Demand service.
Featuring several hours of weddmg-lr[elated programming; “The Knot Weddings” provides Comcast
cable customers with 24/7 access to” wedding-related television programming, from bridal fashion
runway shows and wedding style specrals ‘1o episodes of “Real Weddings from The Knot.” The Xnot
also remains the exclusive wedding content provider to Comcast High Speed Internet portal.

Through our regronal magazrnes“ and the expansion of our in-depth online city guides, we are
aggressively increasing our brand awareness at the local level. At the same time, we are taking
advantage of the cross—promotlonal opportumtres that offline publications afford our online propertres

and services. Our local advertising sales force further supports The Knot brand through participation in
their local wedding professional assocratrons and appearances at local bridal events.
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Capitalize on Multiple Revenue Opportunities. We intend to use the size and favorable
demographics of our online and offline communities to continue to grow our existing muitiple revenue
streams within the wedding space and beyond. We are focused on providing our sponsors and
advertisers with targeted access to couples actively seeking information and making purchase decisions.
We maximize our advertising revenues by offering targeted marketing opportunities to both our
national advertising sponsors and local wedding vendors through the integration of advertising with
editorial content on our site and in our magazines. With the addition of category specific advertising
programs to our customized marketing campaigns, we have broadened the group of potential
advertisers and sponsors who can benefit from targeting The Knot’s audience. We have continued to
expand the number of specific programs available to local vendors. Our efforts to attract advertisers are
supported by a national sales force in New York and by a local sales force of over 50 people positioned
in markets around the United States.

Leverage our Relationship with our Audience. We believe a large and active membership base is
critical to our success. Membership enrollment is free; and our members enjoy the use of personal Web
pages, message boards, budgeting and planning tools, wedding checklists and wedding fashion and
honeymoon searches. New membership growth has leveled off in recent years. We enrolled
approximately 1.0 million and 1.1 million new members in 2005 and 2004, respectively. During the first
two months of 2006, we were enrolling an average of approximately 3,900 new members per day. Our
priority in the wedding space is to increase member usage through our content and product offerings,
additional interactive premium services, active community participation and strategic relationships.

Expansion into other Life Stages and Services. With the launch of our new website,
www.thenest.com in November 2004, we are now extending our relationship with our core membership
base and providing access to additional products and services relevant to newlyweds and growing
families. In the first years of marriage, Nest members will spend even more than they did on their
weddings and on a far broader array of products and services when they buy and set up homes, get their
financial lives in order and start building families.

TheNest.com leads TheKnot.com newlyweds through this time of their lives with informative
articles, step-by-step guides, photo slideshows, checklists and tools to help in all aspects of setting up
their lives from decorating their home to planning to have a baby. The information from the interactive
planning tools on TheKnot.com is converted for use during the newlywed period. The guests list
manager becomes the family contacts manager, the wedding web page becomes the new home page and
the checklist adds the legal and practical tasks to be handled in the first year of marriage. Information
can be targeted to a user’s geography or timeline by using the membership information that we have on
hand.

We plan to develop The Nest brand in the same manner we built The Knot brand with increased
consumer awareness leading to increased advertiser adoption. Strategically, The Nest will allow us to
expand the base of potential advertisers beyond those that are endemic to the bridal industry without
having to attract a new audience.

Becoming parents for the first time is another major life change for newlyweds, and we believe
there will be an opportunity to continue serving our audience as they enter this next significant life
stage. In the fourth quarter of 2005, we embarked on two new initiatives in the baby space creating a
private label personalized baby product store and a co-branded personalized baby product boutique
with two strategic partners through which we expect to derive additional merchandise revenue. These
partnerships also allow us to leverage our existing merchandising facility and our expertise in
personalization and fulfillment.

We have also created or acquired other small properties to leverage the clients and technologies we
have developed and broaden the complementary services we offer. In January 2005, we acquired the
business and assets of GreatBoyfriends LLC including the websites www.greatboyfriends.com and
www.greatgirlfriends.com. These websites offer referral-based online dating services supported by
subscriptions. We believe our bridal community represents a motivated group that will take advantage
of these unique services to post recommendations and pictures on behalf of their single acquaintances.
In addition, our internally developed sites, PromSpot.com and PartySpot.com, provide party planning
information to teens and their parents who are hosting proms, bar mitzvahs, sweet sixteens and
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graduation parties. Fashion listings, lo
easily retrofitted from TheKnot.com

Competition |
The Internet advertising and on

competitive, and we expect competitic]‘

cal party resource directories and beauty and planning advice are
to provide a robust resource for this underserved market.

line wedding markets are new, rapidly evolving and intensely
n to intensify in the future. There are many wedding-related sites

on the Internet developed and maintained by online content providers. Retail stores, manufacturers,

wedding magazines and regional wedding directories also have online sites which compete with us for

online advertising and merchandise re;
opportunities presented by the growth

as a result of industry consolidation

We also face competition for our
published by Condé Nast, are the two

We believe that the principal co

I
venue. We expect competition to increase because of the business

of the Internet and e-commerce. Competition may also intensify
and a lack of substantial barriers to entry in our market.

services from bridal magazines. Bride’s and Modern Bride, both
dominant bridal publications in terms of revenue and circulation.

mpetitive factors in the wedding market are brand recognition,

convenience, ease of use, information, quality of service and products, member affinity and loyalty,
reliability and selection. As to these factors, we believe that we compete favorably. Our dedicated
editorial, sales and product staffs concentrate their efforts on producing the most comprehensive

wedding resources available.

Generally, many of our currer
significantly greater financial, technica

these competitors have significant ab&lity to attract advertisers and users. In addition, many of these

competitors may be able to respond
changes in Internet user requirements
promotion and sale of services. There
not develop products and services ¢
quickly than we do to new technologi
Increased competition could result in
which would materially and adversely

Infrastructure, Operations and Techn

t and potential competitors have longer operating histories,
1 and marketing resources and high name recognition. Therefore,
more quickly than we can to new or emerging technologies and
and to devote greater resources than we do to the development,
can be no assurance that our current or potential competitors will
pmparable or superior to those developed by us or adapt more
es, evolving industry trends or changing Internet user preferences.
price reductions, reduced margins or loss of market share, any of
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

ology

Our technology infrastructure provides for continuous availability of our online services. There are

three major components to our online services comprised of our Web, domain name service (“*DNS”)
and Database servers. Our Web and DNS servers are fully redundant and allow for the failure of
multiple components. We have multlpule Database servers serving various parts of our site allowing us to
section parts of the site for maintenance and upgrades.

Our operation is dependent on the ability to maintain our computer and telecommunications
system in effective working order and to protect our systems against damage from fire, theft, natural
disaster, power loss, telecommunications failure or similar events. Our system hardware is co-located at
Globix Corporation’s New York, New Ii York data center; and our operations depend, in part, on Globix’s

ability to protect its own systems al‘ud our systems from similar unexpected adverse events. Globix
provides us with auxiliary power thrlaugh the use of battery and diesel generators in the event of an
unexpected power outage. We maintain multiple backups of our data, thus allowing us to quickly

recover from any disaster. Additional
storage.

Regular capacity planning allow:

ly, at least once a week, copies of backup tapes are sent to off-site

us to upgrade existing hardware and integrate new hardware to

react quickly to a rapidly expanding

member base and increased traffic to our sites. We generally

operate at 99% uptime and no unexpected downtime. Key content management and e-commerce
components are designed, developed( and deployed by our in-house technology group. We also license
commercially available technology when appropriate in lieu of dedicating our own human and financial
resources. We employ several layers of security to protect data transmission and prevent unauthorized
access. We keep all of our production servers behind firewalls. No outside access is allowed. Strict
password management and physical security measures are followed. All systems are monitored 24/7, and
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emergency response teams respond to all alerts. We have also contracted the services of an outside
company to independently monitor the site, including the e-commerce section of the site, to ensure that
the site is available, that users can add items to their cart and that the checkout process completes
successfully. E-commerce transactions employ secure sockets layer encryption to secure data
transmitted between clients and servers. Credit card information captured during e-commerce
transactions is never shared with outside parties, and we provide shoppers with a toll-free number to
place orders by phone as an alternative to completing a transaction online.

Government Regulation

Laws applicable to e-commerce, online privacy and the Internet generally are becoming more
prevalent. It is possible that new laws and regulations may be adopted regarding the Internet or other
online services in the United States and foreign countries. Such new laws and regulations may address
user privacy, freedom of expression, unsolicited commercial e-mail (spam), pricing, content and quality
of products and services, taxation, advertising, intellectual property rights and information security. The
nature of such legislation and the manner in which it may be interpreted and enforced cannot be fully
determined at this time. Such legislation could subject us and/or our customers to potential liability or
restrict our present business practices, which, in turn, could have an adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition. In addition, the FTC has investigated the privacy practices
of several companies that collect information about individuals on the Internet. The adoption of any
such laws or regulations might also decrease the rate of growth of Internet use generally, which, in turn,
could decrease the demand for our service or increase our cost of doing business or in some other
manner have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Specifically, several states have proposed legislation that would limit the use and disclosure of
personally identifiable information gathered online about users. To obtain membership on our sites, a
user must disclose their name, address, e-mail address and role in the wedding. We do not currently
share any member’s personal identifying information to third parties without the member’s prior
consent. We may share aggregated member information with third parties, such as a member’s zip code
or gender and may use information revealed by members and information built from user behavior to
target advertising, content and e-mail. Because we rely on the collection and use of personal data from
our members for targeting advertisements, we may be harmed by any laws or regulations that restrict
our ability to collect or use this data.

Privacy concerns in general may cause visitors to avoid online sites that collect behavioral
information and even the perception of security and privacy concerns, whether or not valid, may
indirectly inhibit market acceptance of our services. In addition, if our privacy practices are deemed
unacceptable by watchdog groups or privacy advocates, such groups may attempt to harm our business
by blocking access to our sites or disparaging our reputation and our business, and may have a material
effect on our results of operation and financial condition.

In addition, applicability to the Internet of existing laws governing issues such as property
ownership, copyrights and other intellectual property issues, taxation, libel, obscenity and personal
privacy is uncertain. It is uncertain how such existing laws may apply to or address the unique issues of
the Internet and related technologies. For example, because our services are accessible throughout the
United States, other jurisdictions may claim that we are required to qualify to do business as a foreign
corporation in a particular state. We are currently qualified to do business in several states, however, our
failure to qualify as a foreign corporation in a jurisdiction where we are required to do so could subject
us to taxes and penalties for the failure to qualify and could result in our inability to enforce contracts in
such jurisdictions. Any new legislation or regulation regarding the Internet, or the application of
existing laws and regulations to the Internet, could harm us.

The international regulatory environment relating to the Internet market could have a material and
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition if we elect to expand
internationally. In particular, the European Union privacy regulations limit the collection and use of
some user information and subject data collectors to a restrictive regulatory regime. The cost of such
compliance could be material, and we may not be able to comply with the applicable national
regulations in a timely or cost-effective manner, if at all.
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Changes to existing laws or the passage of new laws intended to address these issues, including
some recently proposed changes, could create uncertainty in the marketplace that could reduce demand
for our services or increase the cost of doing business as a result of litigation costs or increased service
delivery costs, or could in some other manner have a material adverse effect on our business, results of

operations and financial condition.

Intellectual Property and Proprietaw Rights

We regard our copyrights, serv1ce marks, trademarks, trade dress, trade secrets, proprietary
technology and similar intellectual property as critical to our success, and rely on trademark and
copyright law, trade secret protectlon confidentiality and assignment of invention agreements, and/or
license agreements with employees, cu\stomers, independent contractors, partners and others to protect
our proprietary rights. We strategically pursue the registration of our trademarks and service marks in
the United States, and have applied for and obtained registration in the United States for some of our
trademarks and service marks, mcludngg “THE KNOT?”. Effective trademark, service mark, copyright
and trade secret protection may not be available in every country in which our products and services are
made available online.

We have licensed in the past, and expect to continue to license in the future, some of our
proprietary rights, such as trademarks :[or copyrighted material, to third parties. While we attempt to
ensure that the quality of our brand is maintained by our licensees, there can be no assurance that our
licensees will not take actions that mlgﬂt materially adversely affect the value of our proprietary rights
or reputation, which could have a maten\al adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results

of operations. |

|

The steps we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be adequate and third parties
may infringe or misappropriate our copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets and similar proprietary rights.
In addition, other parties may assert claims of infringement of intellectual property against us. Although
we believe that our products and services do not infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others
and that we have all rights necessary to \:utilize the intellectual property employed in our business, we
may nonetheless be subject to claims alleging infringement of third-party intellectual property rights.
Any such claims could require us to spend significant sums on litigation, pay damages, delay product
installments, develop non-infringing intellgactual property or acquire licenses to intellectual property that
is the subject of any such infringement, wﬁich licenses may not be available on commercially reasonable
terms, if at all. Therefore, such claims could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition. \\

\
As of December 31, 2005, we had a t‘otal of 260 employees, of which 77 were involved in product
and content development, 147 were involved in sales and marketing and 36 were involved in general

and administrative functions. None of ou~r; employees is represented by a labor union. We have not
experienced any work-stoppages, and we consider relations with our employees to be good.

Employees

Available Information

The Knot’s website is located at www. t{zeknot com. The Knot makes available free of charge, on or

through our website, our annual, quarterly : and current reports, and any amendments to those reports,
|

as soon as reasonably practicable after elpctromcally filing such reports with, or furnishing to, the

Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Information contained on The Knot’s website is not part
of this report or any other report filed with the SEC.

The Knot’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all officers, directors and
employees, Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers (and any
amendments to, or waivers under such c&de) and the charters of the Audit and Compensanon
Committees of our Board of Directors are ‘also available on The Knot’s website and are available in
print to any stockholder upon request by wntmg to The Knot, Inc., 462 Broadway, 6th floor, New York,
New York, 10013, Attention: Investor Relat;ons




Item 1A. Risk Factors

RISK FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

In addition to other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the following risk factors
should be carefully considered in evaluating our business because such factors currently or may have a
significant impact on our business, operating results or financial condition. This Annual Report on Form
10-K may contain forward-looking statements that have been made pursuant to the provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Actual results could differ materially from those
projected in the forward-looking statements as a result of the risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in
this Annual Report. We undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements for
any reason, even if new information becomes available or other events occur in the future.

Risks Related to Our Business

We have an unproven business model, and it is uncertain whether online wedding-related sites can
generate sufficient revenues to survive.

Our model for conducting business and generating revenues is unproven. Our business mode}
depends in large part on our ability to generate revenue streams from multiple sources through our
online sites, including online sponsorship and advertising fees from third parties and online sales of
wedding gifts and supplies. :

It is uncertain whether wedding-related online sites that rely on attracting sponsors and advertisers,
as well as people to purchase wedding gifts and supplies, can generate sufficient revenues to survive. For
our business to be successful, we must provide users with an acceptable blend of products, information,
services and community offerings that will attract wedding consumers to our online sites frequently. In
addition, we must provide sponsors, advertisers and vendors the opportunity to reach these wedding
consumers. We provide our services to users without charge, and we may not be able to generate
sufficient revenues to pay for these services.

Moreover, we face many of the risks and difficulties frequently encountered in new and rapidly
evolving markets, including the online advertising and e-commerce markets. These risks include our
ability to:

¢ increase the audience on our sites;

¢ broaden awareness of our brand;

¢ strengthen user loyalty;

» offer compelling content;

e maintain our leadership in generating traffic;

* maintain our current, and develop new, strategic relationships;

e attract a large number of advertisers from a variety of industries;

¢ respond effectively to competitive pressures;

¢ continue to develop and upgrade our technology; and

¢ attract, integrate, retain and motivate qualified personnel.

These risks could negatively impact our financial condition if left unaddressed. Accordingly, we are
not certain that our business model will continue to be successful or that we can sustain revenue growth
or profitability.

We have a history of significant losses since our inception and may incur significant losses in the
future.

While we have achieved profitability in the last three fiscal years, we have incurred significant
accumulated losses. As of December 31, 2005, our accumulated deficit was $42.2 million. We expect to
continue to incur significant operating expenses and, as a result, we will need to generate significant
revenues to maintain profitability. We cannot assure you that we can sustain or increase profitability on
a quarterly or annual basis in the future. Failure to maintain profitability may materially and adversely
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affect our business, results of operatlons and financial condition and the market price of our common
stock. \]

We lack significant revenues and may be unable to adjust spending quickly enough to offset any
unexpected revenue shortfall.

Our revenues for the foreseepble future will remain dependent on online user traffic levels,
advertising activity, both online and offline, the extension of our brand into other life stages and
services, and the expansion of our]e commerce activity. In addition, we plan to expand and develop
content and to continue to upgrade and enhance our technology and infrastructure. We incur a
significant percentage of our expenses, such as employee compensation, prior to generating revenues
associated with those expenses. Moreover, our expense levels are based, in part, on our expectation of
future revenues. We may be unable to adjust spending quickly enough to offset any unexpected revenue
shortfall. If we have a shortfall in revenues or if operating expenses exceed our expectations or cannot

be adjusted accordingly, then our results of operations would be materially and adversely affected.

If sales to sponsors or advertisers forecasted in a particular period are delayed or do not otherwise
occur, our results of operations for “a particular period would be materially and adversely affected.

The time between the date of 1n1t1a1 contact and the execution of a contract with a national sponsor
or advertiser is often lengthy, typlcally ranging from six weeks for smaller programs and several months
for larger programs, and may be sul?]ect to delays over which we have little or no control, including:

e the occurrence of extraordinary events, such as the attacks on September 11, 2001;
¢ customers’ budgetary constrai%ts;

|

¢ customers’ internal acceptance reviews;

. .| .
¢ the success and continued internal support of advertisers’ and sponsors’ own development
efforts; and

» the possibility of cancellation or delay of projects by advertisers or sponsors.

During the sales cycle, we may expend substantial funds and management resources in advance of
generating sponsorship or advertising revenues. Accordingly, if sales to advertisers or sponsors
forecasted in a particular period are delayed or do not otherwise occur, we would generate less
sponsorship and advertising revenues during that period, and our results of operations may be adversely
affected.

I
Our quarterly revenues and operating results are subject to significant fluctuation, and these
fluctuations may adversely affect the |trading price of our common stock.

Our quarterly revenues and operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and are
expected to continue to fluctuate s1gn1ﬁcantly in the future as a result of a variety of factors, many of
which are outside our control. These factors include:

¢ the level of online usage and tnrafﬁc on our websites;

¢ seasonal demand for e-commerce;

¢ the addition or loss of advertisers;

o the advertising budgeting cycles\ of specific advertisers;

¢ the regional and national magazines’ publishing cycles;

N

* the amount and timing of capital expenditures and other costs relating to the expansion of our
operations, including those related to acquisitions;

+ the introduction of new sites and services by us or our competitors;
¢ changes in our pricing policies or the pricing policies of our competitors; and

¢ general economic conditions, as well as economic conditions specific to the Internet, online and
. . ’ |
offline media and electronic commerce.
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We do not believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results are necessarily
meaningful and you should not rely upon these comparisons as indicators of our future performance.

Due to the foregoing factors, it is also possible that our resuits of operations in one or more future
quarters may fall below the expectations of investors and/or securities analysts. In such event, the
trading price of our common stock is likely to decline.

Because the frequency of weddings vary from quarter to quarter, our operating results may
fluctnate due to seasonality.

Seasonal and cyclical patterns may affect our revenues. In 2004, according to the National Center
of Health Statistics, 20% of weddings in the United States occurred in the first quarter, 25% occurred in
the second quarter, 31% occurred in the third quarter and 24% occurred in the fourth quarter. We have
limited experience generating merchandise revenues. Based upon our limited experience, we believe
wedding related merchandise revenues generally are lower in the first and fourth quarters of each year.
As a result of these factors, we may experience fluctuations in our revenues from quarter to quarter.

We depend on our strategic relationships with other websites.

We depend on establishing and maintaining distribution relationships with high-traffic websites
such as MSN and Comecast for a portion of our traffic. There is intense competition for placements on
these sites, and we may not be able to continue to enter into such relationships on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all. Even if we enter into or maintain distribution relationships with these
websites, they themselves may not attract a significant number of users. Therefore, our sites may not
receive additional users from these relationships. Moreover, we may be required to pay significant fees
to establish and maintain these relationships. Our business, results of operations and financial condition
could be materially and adversely affected if we do not establish and maintain strategic relationships on
commercially reasonable terms or if any of our strategic relationships do not result in increased use of
our websites.

The market for Internet advertising is still developing, and if the Internet fails to gain further
acceptance as a media for advertising, we would experience slower revenue growth than expected
or a decrease in revenue and would incur greater than expected losses.

Our future success depends, in part, on a significant increase in the use of the Internet as an
advertising and marketing medium. Total online sponsorship and advertising revenues constituted 34%,
439% and 50% of our net revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
The Internet advertising market is still developing, and it cannot yet be compared with traditional
advertising media to gauge its effectiveness. As a result, demand for and market acceptance of Internet
advertising solutions are uncertain. Many of our current and potential customers have little or no
experience with Internet advertising and have allocated only a limited portion of their advertising and
marketing budgets to Internet activities. The adoption of Internet advertising, particularly by entities
that have historically relied upon traditional methods of advertising and marketing, requires the
acceptance of a new way of advertising and marketing. These customers may find Internet advertising to
be less effective for meeting their business needs than traditional methods of advertising and marketing.
Furthermore, there are software programs that limit or prevent advertising from being delivered to a
user’s computer, Widespread adoption of this software by users would significantly undermine the
commercial viability of Internet advertising.

We may be unable to continue to build awareness of The Knot and The Nest brand names which
would negatively impact our business and cause our revenues to decline.

Building recognition of our brand is critical to attracting and expanding our online user base and
our offline readership. Because we plan to continue building brand recognition, we may find it necessary
to accelerate expenditures on our sales and marketing efforts or otherwise increase our financial
commitment to creating and maintaining brand awareness. Qur failure to successfully promote and
maintain our brand would adversely affect our business and cause us to incur significant expenses in
promoting our brand without an associated increase in our net revenues.
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Our business could be adversely af
acquisitions or successfully operate |

|

In the future, we may acquire, o

[

ected if we are not able to successfully integrate any future
under our strategic partnerships.

1 invest in, complementary companies, products or technologies or

enter into new strategic partnerships. Acquisitions, investments and partnerships involve numerous

risks, including:
o difficulties in integrating oper
e diversion of financial and ma:
e risks of entering new market
» potential loss of key employe

* inability to generate sufficien

S,

}ations, technologies, products and personnel;

nagement resources from existing operations;

es; and

revenues to offset acquisition or investment costs.

The costs associated with potential acquisitions or strategic alliances could dilute your investment

To pay for an acquisition or to ¢
cash, or a combination of the forego

or adversely affect our results of op

erations.

nter into a strategic alliance, we might use equity securities, debt,
ing. If we use equity securities, our stockholders may experience

dilution. In addition, an acquisition may involve non-recurring charges, including writedowns of

significant amounts of goodwill. The[

operations. Any such acquisitions or
debt financing, which may not be a¥

related increases in expenses could adversely affect our results of
strategic alliances may require us to obtain additional equity or
vailable on commercially acceptable terms, if at all.

If we cannot protect our domain names, it will impair our ability to successfully brand The Knot.

We currently hold various Web |
The acquisition and maintenance of d
The regulation of domain names in

domain names, including www.theknot.com and www.thenest.com.
omain names generally is regulated by Internet regulatory bodies.
the United States and in foreign countries is subject to change.

Governing bodies may establish a

dditional top-level domains, appoint additional domain name

registrars or modify the requirements for holding domain names. As a result, we may be unable to
acquire or maintain relevant domain hames in all countries in which we conduct business. Furthermore,
it is unclear whether laws protecting trademarks and similar proprietary rights will be extended to
protect domain names. Therefore, w%e may be unable to prevent third parties from acquiring domain
names that are similar to, infringe upon or otherwise decrease the value of our trademarks and other
proprietary rights. We may not sucéessfully carry out our business strategy of establishing a strong

brand for The Knot if we cannot pre{{fent others from using similar domain names or trademarks. This

could impair our ability to increase !

Our business and prospects would s
property rights.

We rely upon copyright, trad
confidentiality agreements and licen

content and other intellectual proper

market share and revenues.
iffer if we are unable to protect and enforce our intellectual

e secret and trademark law, assignment of invention and
e agreements to protect our proprietary technology, processes,
ty to the extent that protection is sought or secured at all. The

steps we might take may not be adequate to protect against infringement and misappropriation of our

intellectual property by third parties

similar or superior technology, proc

. Similarly, third parties may be able to independently develop

‘asses, content or other intellectual property. The unauthorized

reproduction or other misappropriation of our intellectual property rights could enable third parties to
benefit from our technology without paying us for it. If this occurs, our business and prospects would be
materially and adversely affected. In addition, disputes concerning the ownership or rights to use
intellectual property could be costly |and time-consuming to litigate, may distract management from
other tasks of operating the business, [and may result in our loss of significant rights and the loss of our
ability to operate our business.
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Our products and services may infringe on intellectual property rights of third parties and any
infringement could require us to incur substantial costs and distract our management.

Although we avoid knowingly infringing intellectual rights of third parties, including licensed
content, we may be subject to claims alleging infringement of third-party proprietary rights. If we are
subject to claims of infringement or are infringing the rights of third parties, we may not be able to
obtain licenses to use those rights on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. In that event, we would
need to undertake substantial reengineering to continue our online offerings. Any effort to undertake
such reengineering might not be successful. Furthermore, a party making such a claim could secure a
judgment that requires us to pay substantial damages. A judgment could also include an injunction or
other court order that could prevent us from selling our products. Any claim of infringement could
cause us to incur substantial costs defending against the claim, even if the claim is invalid, and could
distract our management from our business.

WeddingChannel.com, Inc. has filed a complaint against us alleging, among other claims, that we
have violated their U.S. Patent 6,618,753 (“Systems and Methods for Registering Gift Registries and for
Purchasing Gifts”), and further alleges that certain actions of The Knot give rise to various federal
statute, state statute and common law causes of actions. WeddingChannel is seeking, among other
things, damages and injunctive relief. If we are found to have willfully infringed the patent-in-suit,
enhanced damages may be awarded. This complaint was served on The Knot on September 22, 2003.

Based on information currently available, we believe that the claims are without merit and we are
vigorously defending The Knot against all claims. We have filed an answer and counterclaims against
WeddingChannel. Our answer raises various defenses to the counts alleged by WeddingChannel.
Additionally, we have brought counterclaims including a request that the court declare that the patent-
in-suit is invalid, unenforceable and not infringed. On April 15, 2005, WeddingChannel specified that
they were seeking damages in an amount ranging from approximately $1,100,000 to in excess of
approximately $13,000,000 plus interest. We raised defenses to WeddingChannel’s patent and other
claims, which, if successful, would obviate or substantially limit any potential damages payments.
WeddingChannel has also requested unspecified damages in connection with other claims set forth in its
complaint.

We have filed a series of summary judgment motions seeking to dismiss entirely and/or limit
WeddingChannel’s claims for patent infringement, and WeddingChannel filed certain “cross-motions”
for summary judgment concerning certain of our defenses. These motions were argued before the Court
on September 28 and October 19, 2005, and have not yet been decided. On January 17, 2006, a stay was
entered in the litigation between The Knot and WeddingChannel for a period of not less than 60 days,
upon the joint request of the parties. If the stay is lifted, and if our motions are unsuccessful and some
portion of WeddingChannel’s patent infringement claims remain, the case may go to trial in the second
quarter of 2006.

There can be no assurance that our answer or counterclaims against WeddingChannel will be
successful. If our answer and our defenses do not succeed or if our counterclaims are found to be
without merit, or if we determine to settle this litigation at a later date, we could suffer harm to our
business and a material adverse effect to our financial condition and results of operations.

Our general and administrative expenses increased to $14.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2005, from $11.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 and $7.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. These expenses include legal fees related to the litigation with WeddingChannel of
$4.8 million, $3.1 million and $136,000, respectively. We cannot predict at this time the amount of
additional legal fees that we may incur. There can be no assurance that we will not incur substantial
legal fees in 2006 or beyond in connection with this litigation, at levels equal to or greater than the
amount of fees incurred in 2005.

Increased competition in our markets could reduce our market share, the number of our
advertisers, our advertising revenues and our margins.

The Internet advertising and online wedding markets are still developing. Additionally, both the
Internet advertising and online wedding markets and the wedding magazine publishing markets are
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intensely competitive, and we expect

competition to intensify in the future. We face competition for

members, users, readers and advertisé‘rs from the following areas:

e online services or websites targeted at brides and grooms as well as the online sites of retail
stores, manufacturers and regional wedding directories;

» bridal magazines, such as Bride

¢ online and retail stores offering
registries.

We expect competition to increas

of the Internet and e-commerce. (

consolidation and a lack of substantial

have longer operating histories, sigq

greater name recognition and substan
and, therefore, have significant ability

s and Modern Bride (both part of the Condé Nast family); and

gift registries, especially from retailers 6ffering specific bridal gift

e because of the business opportunities presented by the growth
Dur competition may also intensify as a result of industry
barriers to entry. Many of our current and potential competitors
ificantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources,
ially larger user, membership or readership bases than we have
o attract advertisers, users and readers. In addition, many of our

competitors may be able to respond more quickly than we can to new or emerging technologies and

changes in Internet user requiremen

development, promotion and sale of

ts, as well as devote greater resources than we can to the
services.

There can be no assurance that our current or potential competitors will not develop products and

services comparable or superior to th
technologies, evolving industry trends

could result in price reductions, lower

ose that we develop or adapt more quickly than we do to new

or changing Internet user preferences. Increased competition
margins or loss of market share. There can be no assurance that

we will be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors.

Our potential inability to compete ef
the success of our business.

Competition for personnel in the |
retain employees who are important

fectively in our industry for qualified persohnel could hinder

Internet and wedding industries is intense. We may be unable to
to the success of our business. We may also face difficulties

attracting, integrating or retaining other highly qualified employees in the future. If we cannot attract
new personnel or retain and motivate our current personnel, our business may not succeed.

Terrorism and the uncertainty of war

1
Terrorist attacks, such as the a“
September 11, 2001, and other acts o

may have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

‘ttacks that occurred in New York and Washington, D.C. on

f violence or war may affect the market on which our common

stock will trade, the markets in which we operate or our operating results. Further terrorist attacks

|

against the United States or U.S. busi

I

nesses may occur. The potential near-term and long-term effect

these attacks may have for our customers, the market for our common stock, the markets for our

. [
services and the U.S. economy are un,}
conflicts which may result, are unpred

an adverse effect on our business.

We may not be able to obtain additi

We currently believe that our ¢
working capital and capital expenditur

meet our obligations in the ordinary‘

!

certain. The consequences of any terrorist attacks, or any armed
ctable; and we may not be able to foresee events that could have

onal financing necessary to execute our business strategy.

urrent cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund our
e requirements for at least the next twelve months. Our ability to
course of business is dependent upon our ability to maintain

profitable operations and/or raise additional financing through public or private equity financings, or

I
[s)

other arrangements with corporate s ”

urces, or other sources of financing to fund operations. However,

there is no assurance that we will maintain profitable operations or that additional funding, if required,

will be available to us in amounts o

on terms acceptable to us.
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Systems disruptions and failures could caunse advertiser or user dissatisfaction and could reduce the
attractiveness of our sites.

The continuing and uninterrupted performance of our computer systems is critical to our success.
Our advertisers and sponsors, users and members may become dissatisfied by any systems disruption or
failure that interrupts our ability to provide our services and content to them. Substantial or repeated
system disruption or failures would reduce the attractiveness of our online sites significantly.
Substantially all of our systems hardware required to run our sites is located at Globix Corporation’s
facilities in New York, New York. Globix emerged from bankruptcy protection in April 2002. Fire,
floods, earthquakes, power loss, telecommunications failures, break-ins, acts of terrorism and similar
events could damage these systems. Our operations depend on the ability of Globix to protect its own
systems and our systems in its data center against damage from fire, power loss, water damage,
telecommunications failure, vandalism and similar unexpected adverse events. Although Globix
provides comprehensive facilities management services, Globix does not guarantee that our Internet
access will be uninterrupted, error-free or secure. In addition, computer viruses, electronic break-ins or
other similar disruptive problems could also adversely affect our online sites. Our business could be
materially and adversely affected if our systems were affected by any of these occurrences. We do not
presently have any secondary “off-site” systems or a formal disaster recovery plan. Our sites must
accommodate a high volume of traffic and deliver frequently updated information. Our sites have in the
past experienced slower response times. These types of occurrences in the future could cause users to
perceive our sites as not functioning properly and therefore cause them to use another online site or
other methods to obtain information or services. In addition, our users depend on Internet service
providers, online service providers and other site operators for access to our online sites. Many of them
have experienced significant outages in the past, and could experience outages, delays and other
difficulties due to system disruptions or failures unrelated to our systems. Although we carry general
liability insurance, our insurance may not cover any claims by dissatisfied advertisers or customers or
may not be adequate to indemnify us for any liability that may be imposed in the event that a claim
were brought against us. Any system disruption or failure, security breach or other damage that
interrupts or delays our operations could cause us to lose users, sponsors and advertisers and adversely
affect our business and results of operations.

We may not be able to deliver various services if third parties fail to provide reliable software,
systems and related services to us.

We are dependent on various third parties for software, systems and related services in connection
with our hosting, placement of advertising, accounting software, data transmission and security systems.
Several of the third parties that provide software and services to us have a limited operating history and
have relatively new technology. These third parties are dependent on reliable delivery of services from
others. If our current providers were to experience prolonged systems failures or delays, we would need
to pursue alternative sources of services. Although alternative sources of these services are available, we
may be unable to secure such services on a timely basis or on terms favorable to us. As a result, we may
experience business disruptions if these third parties fail to provide reliable software, systems and
related services to us. : ’ :

We may be liable if third parties misappropriate our users’ personal information.

If third parties were able to penetrate our network security or otherwise misappropriate our users’
personal or credit card information, we could be subject to liability. Our liability could include claims
for unauthorized purchases with credit card information, impersonation or other similar fraud claims as
well as for other misuses of personal information, such as for unauthorized marketing purposes. These
claims could result in costly and time-consuming litigation which could adversely affect our financiat
condition. In addition, the Federal Trade Commission and state agencies have been investigating
various Internet companies regarding their use of personal information. We could have additional
expenses if new regulations regarding the use of personal information are introduced or if our privacy
practices are investigated.
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Our executive officers, directors and stockholders who each owned greater than 5% of our
common stock exercise significant icontrol over all matters requiring a stockholder vote.

As of December 31, 2005, our\ executive officers and directors and stockholders who each owned
greater than 5% of our common| stock, and their affiliates, in the aggregate, beneficially owned
approximately 70% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders are able to
exercise control over all matters r“equiring approval by our stockholders, including the election of
directors and approval of mgmﬁcant\ corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership could also
have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law may make it difficult for a
third party to acquire us. 1)\

Provisions of our certificate of ipcorporation, our bylaws and Delaware law could make it more
difficult for a third party to acquireﬂ us, even if doing so might be beneficial to our stockholders.

|
Risks Related to the Securities Markets

Our stock price has been highly vol?tile and is likely to experience extreme price and volnme
fluctuations in the future that could reduce the value of your investment and subject us to
litigation. “

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated in the past and is likely to continue to be
highly volatile, with extreme price and volume fluctuations. These broad market and industry factors
may harm the market price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance, and
for this or other reasons, we could continue to suffer significant declines in the market price of our
common stock. In the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock
have been the object of securities clas% action litigation. If we were to become the object of securities
class action litigation, it could result in|substantial costs and a diversion of our management’s attention
and resources. 1

)

Sales or the perception of future sales of our common stock may adversely affect our stock price.

Sales of substantial numbers of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception
that significant sales are likely, could “adversely affect the market price of our common stock. The
number of shares of common stock sub]ect to the registration statement we filed in December 2003,
registering the resale of up to 2,800,000\ shares of common stock by the selling stockholders named in
the related prospectus, is much greater, than the average weekly trading volume for our shares. No
prediction can be made as to the effect, 1{ any, that market sales of these or other shares of our common
stock will have on the market price of our common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of our common
stock in the public market could advergely affect the market price of our common stock.

s
Risks Re‘ulated to the Internet Industry

If the use of the Internet and commercia‘\l online services as media for commerce does not continue to
grow, our business and prospects would be materially and adversely affected.

We cannot assure you that a sufficiently broad base of consumers will adopt, and continue to use,
the Internet and commercial online services as media for commerce, particularly for purchases of
wedding gifts and supplies. Even if consumers adopt the Internet or commercial online services as a
media for commerce, we cannot be sure tﬂat the necessary infrastructure will be in place to process such
transactions. Our long-term viability dep\énds substantially upon the widespread acceptance and the
development of the Internet or commercial online services as effective media for consumer commerce
and for advertising. Use of the Internet or ‘commercial online services to effect retail transactions and to
advertise is at an early stage of developxﬁent. Convincing consumers to purchase wedding gifts and
supplies online may be difficult. \

1
Demand for recently introduced serv%ces and products over the Internet and commercial online
services is subject to a high level of uncertainty. The continued development of the Internet and
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commercial online services as a viable commercial marketplace is subject to a number of factors,
including:

e continued growth in the number of users of such services;

e concerns about transaction security;

» continued development of the necessary technological infrastructure;

¢ consistent guality of service;

¢ availability of cost-effective, high speed service;

e uncertain and increasing government regulation; and

s the development of complementary services and products.

If users experience difficulties because of capacity constraints of the infrastructure of the Internet
and other commercial online services, potential users may not be able to access our sites, and our
business and prospects would be harmed.

To the extent that the Internet and other online services continue to experience growth in the
number of users and frequency of use by consumers resulting in increased bandwidth demands, there
can be no assurance that the infrastructure for the Internet and other online services will be able to
support the demands placed upon them. The Internet and other online services have experienced
outages and delays as a result of damage to portions of their infrastructure, power failures,
telecommunication outages, network service outages and disruptions, natural disasters and vandalism
and other misconduct. Outages or delays could adversely affect online sites, e-mail and the level of
traffic on all sites. We depend on online access providers that provide our users with access to our
services. In the past, users have experienced difficulties due to systems failures unrelated to our systems.
In addition, the Internet or other online services could lose their viability due to delays in the
development or adoption of new standards and protocols required to handle increased Ievels of Internet
or other online service activity or to increased governmental regulation. Insufficient availability of
telecommunications services to support the Internet or other online services also could result in slower
response times and negatively impact use of the Internet and other online services generally, and our
sites in particular. If the use of the Internet and other online services fails to grow or grows more slowly
than expected, if the infrastructure for the Internet and other online services does not effectively
support growth that may occur or if the Internet and other online services do not become a viable
commercial marketplace, it is possible that we will not be able to maintain profitability.

We may be unable to respond to the rapid technological change in the Internet industry and this
may harm our business.

If we are unable, for technological, legal, financial or other reasons, to adapt in a timely manner to
changing market conditions or customer requirements, we could lose users and market share to our
competitors. The Internet and e-commerce are characterized by rapid technological change. Sudden
changes in user and customer requirements and preferences, frequent new product and service
introductions embodying new technologies and the emergence of new industry standards and practices
could render our existing online sites and proprietary technology and systems obsolete. The emerging
nature of products and services in the online wedding market and their rapid evolution will require that
we continually improve the performance, features and reliability of our online services. Qur success will
depend, in part, on our ability:

¢ to enhance our existing services;

s 10 develop and license new services and technology that address the increasingly sophisticated
and varied needs of our prospective customers and users; and

¢ to respond to technological advances and emerging industry standards and practices on a cost-
effective and timely basis.

The development of online sites and other proprietary technology entails significant technological
and business risks and requires substantial expenditures and lead time. We may be unable to use new
technologies effectively or adapt our online sites, proprietary technology and transaction-processing
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systems to customer requirements or

and licensing new technology from th

If we become subject to burdensom

emerging industry standards. Updating our technology internally
ird parties may require significant additional capital expenditures.

e government regulation and legal uncertainties related to

doing business online, our sponsorship and advertising and merchandise revenues could decline and
our business and prospects could suffer.

Laws and regulations directly apphcable to Internet communications, pnvacy, commerce and

advertising are becoming more preva]

user privacy, freedom of expression,

ent. Laws and regulations may be adopted covering issues such as
pricing, unsolicited commercial e-mail (spam), content, taxation,

quality of products and services, advcrtising, intellectual property rights and information security. Any

J

new legislation could hinder the growth in use of the Internet and other online services generally and

I

decrease the acceptance of the Internet and other online services as media of communications,

commerce and advertising. The gove
our transmissions or levy sales or oth
remain largely unsettled, even in a
determine whether and how existing
and taxation apply to the Internet

|
rnments of states and foreign countries might attempt to regulate

er taxes relating to our activities. The laws governing the Internet
reas where legislation has been enacted. It may take years to
laws such as those governing intellectual property, privacy, libel
and Internet advertising services. In addition, the growth and

development of the market for e-commerce may prompt calls for more stringent consumer protection

[

laws, both in the United States and abroad, which may impose additional burdens on companies

conducting business online. The adop

\
and other online services could cau

revenues to decline and our busines

tion or modification of laws or regulations relating to the Internet
se our sponsorship and advertising revenues and merchandise
s and prospects to suffer.

We may be sued for information retrieved from our sites.

|

We may be subject to claims for defamation, negligence, copyright or trademark infringement,

personal injury or other legal theorie
types of claims have been brought, so
publications in the past. We could al
from our online sites through links te
posted by members in chat rooms or
liability, may not adequately protect!

relating to the information we publish on our online sites. These
Imetimes successfully, against online services as well as other print
so be subject to claims based upon the content that is accessible

other online sites or through content and materials that may be
bulletin boards. Our insurance, which covers commercial general
us against these types of claims.

We may incur potential product liability for products sold online.

\!

Consumers may sue us if any of the products that we sell online are defective, fail to perform
properly or injure the user. To dat”e we have had limited experience selling products online and
developing relationships with manufa‘%turers or suppliers of such products. We sell a range of products
targeted specifically at brides and gr&oms Such a strategy involves numerous risks and uncertainties.
Although our agreements with ma”nufacturers typically contain provisions intended to limit our

exposure to liability claims, these hrm‘tatxons may not prevent all potential claims. Liability claims could
require us to spend significant time a”nd money in litigation or to pay significant damages. As a result,
any such claims, whether or not successful, could seriously damage our financial results, reputation and

brand name. “

|

We may incur significant expenses related to the security of personal information online.

H

The need to transmit securely conﬁdent1a1 information online has been a significant barrier to

e-commerce and online commumca”tlons Any well-publicized compromise of security could deter
people from using the Internet or ot}ﬁer online services or from using them to conduct transactions that
involve transmitting confidential 1nformat10n Because our success depends on the acceptance of online

services and e-commerce, we may H1n<:ur significant costs to protect against the threat of security
breaches or to alleviate problems caused by such breaches.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We currently lease approximately 20,000 square feet of space at our headquarters in New York City
and we lease approximately 44,000 square feet of space for warehousing and fulfillment operations in
Redding, California. We also lease approximately 2,900 square feet of office space in Austin, Texas.
Weddingpages, Inc., our subsidiary in Omaha, Nebraska, leases approximately 16,000 square feet of
office and warehouse space. The New York, Redding, Austin and Omaha leases expire on March 31,
2012, July 24, 2008, March 3, 2008 and April 30, 2006, respectively.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On September 19, 2003, WeddingChannel.com, Inc. (“WeddingChannel”) filed a complaint against
The Knot in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. The complaint
alleges that The Knot has violated U.S. Patent 6,618,753 (“Systems and Methods for Registering Gift
Registries and for Purchasing Gifts”), and further alleges that certain actions of The Knot give rise to
various federal statute, state statute and common law causes of actions. WeddingChannel is seeking,
among other things, damages and injunctive relief. If The Knot is found to have willfully infringed the
patent-in-suit, enhanced damages may be awarded. This complaint was served on the Company on
September 22, 2003.

Based on information currently available, The Knot believes that the claims are without merit and
is vigorously defending itself against all claims. On October 14, 2003, The Knot filed an answer and
counterclaims against WeddingChannel. The Knot’s answer raises various defenses to the counts alleged
by WeddingChannel. Additionally, The Knot has brought counterclaims including a request that the
court declare that the patent-in-suit is invalid, unenforceable and not infringed. On April 15, 2005,
WeddingChannel specified that they were seeking damages in an amount ranging from approximately
$1,100,000 to in excess of approximately $13,000,000 plus interest. The Knot raised defenses to
WeddingChannel’s patent and other claims, which, if successful, would obviate or substantially limit any
potential damages payments. WeddingChannel has also requested unspecified damages in connection
with other claims set forth in its complaint.

The Knot has filed a series of summary judgment motions seeking to dismiss entirely and/or limit
WeddingChannel’s claims for patent infringement, and WeddingChannel filed certain “cross-motions”
for summary judgment concerning certain of The Knot’s defenses. These motions were argued before
the Court on September 28 and October 19, 2005, and have not yet been decided. On January 17, 2006,
a stay was entered in the litigation between The Knot and WeddingChannel for a period of not less than
60 days, upon the request of the parties. If the stay is lifted, and if The Knot’s motions are unsuccessful
and some portion of WeddingChannel’s patent infringement claims remain, the case may go to trial in
the second quarter of 2006.

There can be no assurance that The Knot’s answer or counterclaims against WeddingChannel will
be successful. If The Knot’s answer and its defenses do not succeed or if its counterclaims are found to
bé without merit, or if The Knot determines to settle this litigation at a later date, The Knot could
suffer harm to its business and a material adverse effect to its financial condition and results of
operations.

The Knot is engaged in other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business and believes
that the ultimate outcome of these actions will not have a material effect on its results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Con‘lmon Egquity and Related Stockholder Matters

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

From January 1, 2004 to Marm 28, 2005, our common stock was available for quotation on
the OTC Bulletin Board under the s ymbol “KNOT.OB”. On March 29, 2005, our common stock was
relisted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “KNOT”. The following table sets forth, for
the periods indicated, the high and lo‘[w sales prices per share of our common stock as reported on the

Nasdaq National Market or the OT C Bulletin Board:

Hgh  Low
2004:
First Quarter. ... ...l e e $ 565 $4.00
Second QUAET ..ot e $ 4.85 $3.25
Third Quarter. .. ..ol e e $ 415 $2.55
Fourth Quarter............0 e $ 535 $2.75
2005:
First QuUarter.....ooneei i e e e $ 7.50 $4.55
Second Quarter ...........L.... e $997 $5.94
Third Quarter............. S $11.75  $6.70
Fourth Quarter............ L $1439  $9.84

On December 30, 2005, the last reported sale price of the common stock on the Nasdaq National
Market was $11.44. On March 3, 2006, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the Nasdaq
National Market was $16.14.

HOLDERS

As of March 3, 2006, there were approximately 147 holders of record of our common stock.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid; any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to
retain future earnings, if any, to finance the expansion of our business and do not expect to pay any cash
dividends for the foreseeable future

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Incorporated by reference to the section entitled “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in
Item 12. ; :
I
I

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected balance sheet data ‘@s of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 and the selected
statement of income data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 have been derived
from our audited financial statement§ included elsewhere herein. The selected balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 200”1 and the statement of operations data for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001 have been derived from our audited financial statements not included
herein. You should read these selected financial data in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and |Results of Operations,” our financial statements and the notes to

those statements included elsewhere! herein.
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Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004(d)(e) 2003(a)(e) 2002(b)(e) 2001(c)(e)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenues
Online sponsorship and advertising ... $§ 25844 $§ 17624 $ 12463 § 6888 § 4923

Merchandising .................. ... 12,591 13,064 15,510 13,674 8,097

Publishing and other.................. 12,973 10,709 8,724 8,914 11,100
Total net revenues .........coovvvvevnneen.. 51,408 41,397 36,697 29,476 24,120
Cost of revenues

Online sponsorship and advertising ... 806 658 446 504 586

Merchandising ............ccovvviintL, 6,062 7,021 8,041 6,898 4,534

Publishing and other.................. 4,233 3,465 3,230 2,822 3,752
Total cost of revenues..............c.c..ou 11,101 11,144 11,717 10,224 8,872
Gross profit ..ol 40,307 30,253 24,980 19,252 15,248
Operating expenses:

Product and content development..... 6,879 5,162 4,221 3,885 4,497

Sales and marketing .................. 14,212 12,068 11,368 11,287 13,967

General and administrative ........... 14,491 11,092 7,523 7,375 8,979

Non-cash sales and marketing......... — — — 653 653

Depreciation and amortization ........ 1,271 817 858 1,244 2,545

Total operating expenses.............. 36,853 29,139 23,970 24,444 30,641

Income (loss) from operations ........ 3,454 1,114 1,010 (5,192) (15,393)

Interest income, net .................. 763 300 102 112 306

Income (loss) before income taxes.... 4,217 1,414 1,112 (5,080) (15,087)

Provision for income taxes............ 265 139 50 — —

Net income (10SS).........ovvvvnnn.n. $§ 3952 § 1275 § 1062 $ (5080) $ (15,087)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic ... $ 017 § 006 $ 006 $ (0.28) § (1.03)

Diluted ..o $ 016 § 005 § 005 § (0.28) § (1.03)
Weighted average number of shares used

in calculating earnings (loss) per share:
Basic ... e 22,715,724 22,073,885 18,900,861 17,909,492 14,716,741
Diluted ...........coiiii it 24,878,652 23,650,408 20,308,658 17,909,492 14,716,741
December 31,
2005 2004 2003(a) 2002(b) 2001
: (in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term

INVeStments .......o.vveveveenneann.. $ 29235 § 23038 $ 22511 § 9306 $ 6,782
Working capital ....................... 23,525 18,462 16,933 5,563 3,790
Total @sSets ..o.vvreirennraiiannennnn. 49,385 39,994 38,707 27,775 26,010
Total stockholders’ equity............. 35,337 29,202 27,300 16,017 15,320

(a) As described in Note 9 of our financial statements, on November 20, 2003, we completed the sale
of 2,800,000 shares of common stock to two institutional investor groups. Net proceeds after
placement fees and other offering expenses were $9,872,000.

(b) As described in Note 8 of our financial statements, on February 19, 2002, we entered into a
Common Stock Purchase Agreement with May Bridal Corporation (“May Bridal”), an affiliate of
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May Department Stores Company, pursuant to which we sold 3,575,747 shares of common stock to
May Bridal for $5,000,000 in cash.

(c) Includes amortization of goodwill.

(d) As described in Note 8 of our ﬁna[ncial statements, as part of a settlement agreement with America
Online, Inc. in September 2004, we recorded a non-cash benefit of $1.2 million as a reduction of
sales and marketing expense.

(e) Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Quarterly Results of Operations Data

The following table sets forth certain unaudited condensed consolidated quarterly statement of
income data for the eight quarters enc‘ied December 31, 2005. This information is unaudited, but in the
opinion of management, it has been prepared substantially on the same basis as the audited
consolidated financial statements apqearing elsewhere in this report and all necessary adjustments,
consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, have been included in the amounts stated below to
present fairly the unaudited consolidated quarterly results of operations. The condensed consolidated
quarterly data should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and the
notes to such statements appearing ell:sewhere in this report. The results of operations for any quarter
are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for any future period.

Three Months Ended

Dec. 31  Sept. 30 June 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30  Mar 31
2005 12005 2005 2005 2004 2004 2004 2004

} (m thousands, except per er share data)

Net revenues..........

Online
sponsorship and
advertising...... $ 7328 §$ 6687 $6054 $5775 §$ 5011 § 4478 § 4,174 $3,961
Merchandising . ... 1,800 3,338 4,067 3,386 2,114 3,717 4,013 3,220
Publishing and
other ........... 3,665 3,092 3,445 2,772 2,940 2,476 2,696 2,597
Total net revenues .... $12,793 $le3,117 $13,566 $11,933 $10,065 $10,671 $10,883 $9,778
Gross profit ........... 10,526 10,069 10,691 9,021 7,930 7,590 7,764 6,969
Net income (loss) ..... 1,481 722 1,340 409 185 1,005(a) 182 (98)
Net earnings (loss) per '
share—
Basic ............. $ 006 $‘ 003 § 006 § 002 § 001 $ 005 § 001 $(0.00)
Diluted ........... $ 006 $ 003 § 005 $ 002 § 001 $§ 004 § 0.01 $(0.00)

(a) As described in Note 8 in our ﬁnajincial statements, as part of a settlement agreement with America
Online, Inc. in September 2004, we recorded a non-cash benefit of $1.2 million as a reduction of

. \
sales and marketing expense. |
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with our financial statements
and related notes included elsewhere in this report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements
relating to future events and the future performance of The Knot based on our current expectations,
assumptions, estimates and projections about us and our industry. These forward-looking statements
involve risks and uncertainties. Qur actual results and timing of various events could differ materially
from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements as a result of a variety of factors, as more fully
described in this section and elsewhere in this report. We undertake no obligation to update publicly any
forward-looking statements for any reason, even if new information becomes available or other events
occur in the future.

Overview

The Knot is a leading lifestage media and services company providing products and services to
couples planning their weddings and future lives together. Our website, at www.theknot.com, is the most
trafficked wedding destination online and offers comprehensive content, extensive wedding-related
shopping, an online wedding gift registry and an active community. The Knot is the leading wedding
content provider to MSN and Comcast. We publish The Knot Weddings Magazine, which features
editorial content and a shopping directory format which covers every major wedding planning decision
and is distributed to newsstands and bookstores across the nation. We also publish The Knot Weddings
regional magazines in 16 markets in the United States and The Knot Real Weddings in two additional
local markets. We also author books on wedding related topics. In November 2004, we launched our
newlywed website, The Nest, at www.thenest.com, the first online destination for the newly married
audience. In January 2005, we acquired the business and assets of GreatBoyfriends LLC including the
websites www.greatboyfriends.com and www.greatgirlfriends.com, which are referral-based online dating
services supported by subscriptions. We are based in New York and have several other offices across the
country.

Each year, approximately 2.2 million couples get married in the United States. According to an
independent research report, the domestic wedding market generates approximately $72 billion in retail
sales annually, including gifts purchased from couples’ registries. Presumed to be a once-in-a-lifetime
occasion, a wedding is a major milestone event and, therefore, consumers tend to allocate significant
budgets to the wedding and related purchases. Weddings also generate substantial revenues for travel
services companies. Honeymoon travel generates an estimated $4.5 billion annually.

Vendors and advertisers highly value to-be-weds as a consumer group. Replenished on an annual
basis, wielding substantial budgets and facing a firm deadline, engaged couples are ideal recipients of
advertisers’ messages and vendors’ products and services. During the six months prior to and the six
months following a wedding, the average couple will make more buying decisions and purchase more
products and services than at any other time in their lives. The challenges and obstacles that engaged
couples face make them especially receptive to marketing messages. We provide national and local
advertisers with targeted access to couples actively seeking information and advice and making
meaningful spending decisions relating to all aspects of their weddings.

National online advertisers can enter into arrangements to exclusively sponsor entire editorial areas
or special features on our site. We may also offer sponsors additional online promotional events such as
a sweepstakes, newsletter and direct e-mail programs, or inclusion of their special offers in our
membership gateway. With our expansion into local markets and the further development of The Knot
Weddings Magazine, we have expanded the scope of the integrated marketing programs we offer to our
national online advertisers to include print advertising in our national and regional magazines. Also, we
now offer national advertisers the opportunity to sponsor content on The Knot TV, a streaming video
channel that broadcasts 24/7 on our website. Advertisers can promote their services and products within
the programming on this channel.

The Local Resources area on The Knot website provides access to the local wedding market
through 67 online city and regional guides that host profiles for over 13,000 local vendors, such as
reception halls, bands, florists and caterers. Local wedding vendors can supplement print advertisements
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in our regional magazines with prot‘?lles and sponsorship badges as well as preferred placement and
other premium programs within the\u appropriate online city guide, and they can also reach their
markets through targeted local ema11s We also offer programs to local vendors that include advertising

placement in The Knot Weddings Magazme

We address a portion of the |retail opportunity in the wedding market by integrating our
informative content with shopping seﬁvices which range from wedding gifts to a comprehensive array of
supplies that relate to the wedding 1)tself We have created two shopping areas on The Knot website
called The Knot Gift Registry Center and The Knot Wedding Shop.

The Knot Gift Registry Center offers a large selection of china, crystal and flatware through our
partnership with Michael C. Fina. In addmon earlier this year, we announced a new partnership with
Target Corporation under which Target Club Wedd became our premier registry provider allowing our
members easy access to Target Club Wedds extensive registry assortment. We earn commissions from
the sale of products in connection w1th these retail partnerships.

We sell wedding supplies direct “to consumers through our integrated shopping destination, The
Knot Wedding Shop. We offer over\one thousand products, including disposable cameras, wedding
bubbles and bells, candy and cookles ring pillows, toasting flutes, reception decorations, table
centerpieces, goblets and glasses, garttﬂars and unity candles. We offer personalization options for many
of our wedding supplies. We have laut%ched our own line of Knot-branded wedding supplies called The
Knot Wedding Collections and our own line of wedding-themed apparel, which can be personalized as
well. In 2005, we launched ShopForWeddings.com. ShopForWeddings.com is our separate online store
for wedding supplies, which we devel\oped in order to attract additional users and generate further
revenues. In addition, we sell weddlrﬁg supplies directly to other select bridal retailers through our
wholesale wedding supplies division whose products are featured online at our wholesale website,
WeddingSupplies Direct.com. Participating bridal retailers have recognized that The Knot is a one-stop
supplier for these items. We fulfill all %etail and wholesale wedding supplies orders from our Redding,

California facility.

Our strategy is to expand our posi‘ ion as a leading lifestage media and services company providing
comprehensive planning and other information, products and services to couples planning their

weddings and future lives together. Key elements of our business strategy include the following:

Build Strong Brand Recognition. Building a dominant brand is critical to attracting and expanding
both our online and offline user base |and securing our leading position in the bridal market.

We promote our brand through aggressive public relations outreach, including television
appearances by Carley Roney, our ed‘itor in chief and lead wedding expert. Through our regional
magazines and the expansion of our i"}l depth online city guides, we are aggressively increasing our
brand awareness at the local level. Our local advertising sales force further supports The Knot brand
through participation in their local weddmg professional associations and appearances at local bridal

events.

Capitalize on Multiple Revenue | Opportunities. We intend to use the size and favorable
demographics of our online and offline “‘\communities to continue to grow our existing multiple revenue
streams within the wedding space. We V"Yﬂl pursue additional revenue opportunities in connection with
the needs of today’s engaged and newly married couples including premium services.

Leverage our Relationship with ow% Audience. We believe a large and active membership base is
critical to our success. Membership enrollment is free; and our members enjoy the use of personal Web
pages, message boards, budgeting and{planning tools, wedding checklists and wedding fashion and
honeymoon searches. New membership growth has leveled off in recent years. We enrolled
approximately 1.0 million and 1.1 mﬂhonU new members in the years 2005 and 2004, respectively. During
the first two months of 2006, we were enrolhng an average of approximately 3,900 new members per
day. Our priority in the wedding space 1”5 to increase member usage through our content and product
offerings, additional interactive premium services, active community participation and strategic

relationships.

Expansion into other Life Stages and Services. With the launch of our website at www.thenest.com,
we are expanding our relationship with our core membership base and providing access to additional
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products and services relevant to newlyweds and growing families. We plan to develop The Nest brand
in the same manner we built The Knot brand with increased consumer awareness leading to increased
advertiser adoption.

Becoming parents for the first time is another major life change for newlyweds, and we believe
there will be an opportunity to continue serving our audience as they enter this next significant life
stage. We have also created or acquired other small properties to leverage the clients and technologies
we have developed and to broaden the complementary services we offer.

The pursuit of our business strategies may involve potential acquisitions, or investments in,
complementary businesses or products.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, our revenue grew by $10.0 million, or approximately 24%,
when compared to 2004. This growth resulted primarily from increases in our higher margin online
sponsorship and advertising revenues of $8.2 million, or 47%, as a result of the continued expansion of
our client base, increased spending by our clients on additional or premium programs and through the
impact of price increases in local markets. In addition, publishing and other revenue grew by $2.3
million or 21%. This increase primarily reflects growth in the sale of advertising pages to designers in
our national publication and to local vendors in the majority of our local print publications, as well as
small rate increases. Publishing revenue also rose as a result of an increase in the number of copies
distributed and sold of our national publication. The increase in 2005 was also net of a decrease in
publishing revenue of approximately $477,000 from 2004 as a result of the timing of certain publications.
Merchandise revenue, derived primarily from the sale of wedding supplies to retail and wholesale
customers, decreased by $473,000, or 4%. We conducted a review of our wholesale customer base in the
last half of 2004 and eliminated a number of marginal accounts, which contributed to a decline in
wholesale revenue of $670,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the prior year.
The sale of supplies at retail increased by $486,000 or 5% for the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to the prior year. The balance of the merchandise revenue variance related to registry
revenue. Merchandise revenue in the first half of 2004 was negatively impacted by the installation of
new warehouse management software and site performance issues. While these operational issues have
been addressed, the leveling of new membership growth in recent years has also impacted the growth in
retail supplies sales directly since our brides or members are the principal buyers, and we also believe
there is further competition developing online with respect to the sale of wedding supplies products. To
address these issues, we have developed a new e-commerce platform, which launched in July 2005. This
new platform is designed to allow us over time to more effectively sell product to our members and to
improve the online shopping experience on our sites. Qur primary goal remains one of increasing the
percentage of members who purchase merchandise from us online and their average spending to
support further revenue growth from our existing membership.

Critical Aecounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities on an on-going basis. We evaluate these estimates
including those related to revenue recognition, aliowances for doubtful accounts and returns, inventory
provisions, impairment of intangible assets including goodwill and deferred taxes. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenues from the sale of online sponsorship and advertising programs, from the sale of
merchandise and from the publication of magazines.

Online sponsorship programs are designed to integrate advertising with online editorial content.
Sponsors can purchase the exclusive right to promote products or services on a specific online editorial
area and can purchase a special feature on our sites. These programs commonly include banner

28




advertisements and direct e-mail mar
within the programming on our strea

Online advertising includes online

placement in our online search tools.}

keting. Sponsors can also promote their services and products
ming video channel, The Knot TV.

e banner advertisements and direct e-mail marketing as well as
This category also includes online listings, including preferred

placement and other premium programs, in the local area of our websites for local wedding and other
vendors. Local vendors may purchase online listings through fixed term contracts or open-ended

subscriptions.

Certain elements of online spon
minimum number of impressions. Img
link or other form of content on our s
and advertising revenues over the dura

minimum guaranteed impressions. To

orship and advertising contracts provide for the delivery of a
ressions are the featuring of a sponsor’s advertisement, banner,
ites. To date, we have recognized applicable online sponsorship
tion of the contracts on a straight-line basis, as we have exceeded
he extent that minimum guaranteed impressions are not met, we

are generally obligated to extend the period of the contract until the guaranteed impressions are

I

achieved. If this were to occur, we would defer and recognize the corresponding revenues over the

extended period.

Merchandise revenues generally include the selling price of wédding supplies and products from

our gift registry sold through our wehﬂ

]

sites as well as related outbound shipping and handling charges

since we are the primary party obligated in a transaction, are subject to inventory risk, and we establish

.. . |
our own pricing and selection of supp

connection with the sale of products fr

‘liers. Merchandise revenues also include commissions earned in
om our gift registry under agreements with certain retail partners

where we are not primarily obligated, not subject to inventory risk and amounts earned are determined
using a fixed percentage. Merchandise revenues are recognized when products are shipped to customers,
reduced by discounts as well as an a

lowance for estimated sales returns.

Publishing revenue includes print advertising revenue derived from the publication of The Knot
Weddings Magazine, the publication of regional magazines, The Knot Weddings and other publications,

as well as fees from the license of the Weddingpages name for use in publication by certain former
franchisees. These revenues and fees are recognized upon the publication of the related magazines, at
which time all material services related to the magazine have been performed, or as fees are earned
under the terms of license agreementg Additionally, publishing revenues are derived from the sale of
magazines on newsstands and in bo”okstores, and from author royalties received related to book

publishing contracts. Revenues from‘\the sale of magazines are recognized when the products are
shipped, reduced by an allowance for estimated sales returns. Author royalties, to date, have been
derived from publisher royalty advanlces that are recognized as revenue when all of our contractual
obligations have been met which is ty%ncally upon the delivery to, and acceptance by, the publisher of

the final manuscript. )

For contracts with multiple elc@,‘ments, including programs which combine online and print
advertising components, we allocate revenue to each element based on evidence of its fair value.

Evidence of fair value is the normal p;‘ricing and discounting practices for those deliverables when sold

separately. We defer revenue for any,
element in accordance with the reven

Revenue for which realization is

undelivered elements and recognize revenue allocated to each
ue recognition policies set forth above.

not reasonably assured is deferred.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
our customers to make required pay%nents As of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, our
allowance for doubtful accounts amoupted to $274,000 and $411,000, respectively. In determining these
allowances, we evaluate a number of factors, including the credit risk of customers, historical trends and

other relevant information. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, additional
allowances may be required.
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Inventory

In order to record our inventory at its lower of cost or market, we assess the ultimate realizability
of our inventory, which requires us to make judgments as to future demand and compare that with
current inventory levels. We record a provision to adjust our inventory balance based upon that
assessment. If our merchandise revenues grow, the investment in inventory would likely increase. It is
possible that we would need to further increase our inventory provisions in the future.

Goodwill

As of December 31, 2005, we had recorded goodwill and other intangible assets of $9.1 million. In
our most recent assessment of impairment of goodwill as of October 1, 2005, we made estimates of fair
value using multiple approaches. In our ongoing assessment of impairment of goodwill and other
intangible assets, we consider whether events or changes in circumstances such as significant declines in
revenues, earnings or material adverse changes in the business climate, indicate that the carrying value
of assets may be impaired. As of December 31, 2005, no impairment indicators were noted. Future
adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results of strategic investments could result in
losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments, thereby possibly requiring
impairment charges in the future.

Deferred Taxes

A tax valuation allowance is established, as needed, to reduce net deferred tax assets to the amount
for which recovery is probable. As of December 31, 2005, we have established a full valuation allowance
of $15.0 million against our net deferred tax assets. Depending on the amount and timing of taxable
income we may ultimately generate in the future, as well as other factors including limitations which
may arise from changes in the Company’s ownership, we could recognize no benefit from our deferred
tax assets, in accordance with our current estimate, or we could recognize some or all of their full value.

Stock-Based Compensation

To date, we have accounted for stock-based compensation by using the intrinsic value based
method in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. Accordingly, we have only
recorded compensation expense for any stock options granted with an exercise price that is less than the
fair market value of the underlying stock at the date of grant. Refer to the section entitled “Recent
Accounting Pronouncements” on page 36 for a discussion of the impact of the recently issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, on our recording of
stock-based compensation for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on January 1, 2006.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth for the periods presented certain data from our statement of income.
All items are expressed as a percentage of total net revenues, except for cost of revenues, which are
expressed as a percentage of their related net revenues.

Net revenues

Online sponsorship and advert{sing ................ e

Merchandising................. ‘
Publishing and other .......... ‘

Total net revenues................. |
Cost of revenues ‘

....................................

Online sponsorship and advertising.......................... e

Merchandising................. !
Publishing and other .........] |

Total cost of revenues.............

Gross profit .......... ...l
Operating expenses:

Product and content development................ ..ol

Sales and marketing...........
General and administrative ... .
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Income from operations ...........
Interest income, net ...............

Income before income taxes.......
Provision for income taxes.........

Net income ...................

Years Ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004

Net revenues were $51.4 million
respectively.

Year Ended December 31,

s e 20
503%  42.6%  33.9%
245 315 423
252 259 238
1000 1000  100.0
31 37 36
481 537 518
36 324 370
216 269 319
784 731 - 681
134 124 115
276 292 310
282 268 205
25 20 23
717 704 653
6.7 27 28
15 0.7 02
82 34 3.0
0.5 0.3 0.1
77%  31%  2.9%

and $41.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,

Online sponsorship and advertising revenues increased to $25.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 as compared to $17 6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Revenue from
local vendor online advertlsmg programs increased by $5.8 million or by approximately 50%, primarily
as a result of an increase in both the number and the average spending of local vendor clients, including
the continuing impact of price mc‘reases in local markets. In addition, there was an increase of
approximately $2.4 million in national online sponsorship and advertising revenue largely due to an
increase in the average spending by our national accounts. Online sponsorship and advertising revenues
amounted to 50% of our net reven‘ues for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 43% of our net
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Merchandise revenues, which cc

nsist primarily of the sale of wedding supplies, decreased to $12.6

million as compared to $13.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Retail supplies revenue

increased by $486,000 or 5% as a

increased fees for personalization an

result of a combination of an increase in the number of buyers,
d shipping and lower product returns. Wholesale supplies revenue

decreased by $670,000 in 2005 as compared to the prior year. We conducted a review of our wholesale

customer base in the last half of 200‘

balance of the merchandise revenue
first half of 2004, in general, was imp
affecting customer service perforn
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management software at our Redding, California facility. We also believe retail supplies revenue in 2005
and 2004 has been affected by the leveling of our new membership growth and by further competition
developing online with respect to the sale of wedding supplies products. Merchandise revenues
amounted to 25% of our net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 32% of our net
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Publishing and other revenues increased to $13.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, as
compared to $10.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Local print revenue increased by $1.6
million due to an increase in advertising pages sold in comparable markets, including revenue associated
with the local section of our national magazine, and a small increase in pricing. National print revenue
derived from The Knot Weddings Magazine increased by $593,000 as a result of an increase in the
number of designer advertisers, advertising page rates for both designer and national advertisers, as well
as an increase in the number of copies sold due to expanded distribution. The year ended December 31,
2004 included approximately $477,000 in additional publishing revenue as a result of the timing of
certain publications. Publishing and other revenue amounted to 25% of our net revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2005 and 26% of our net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues consists of the cost of merchandise sold, including outbound shipping costs, the
costs related to the production of regional magazines and our national magazine, payroll and related
expenses for our personnel who are responsible for the production of online and offline media, and
costs of Internet and hosting services.

Cost of revenues was $11.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. The cost of
revenues from the sale of merchandise decreased by $1.0 million due primarily to improved margins
resulting from higher pricing, including increased personalization and shipping charges and lower costs
for product sourced. The decrease was also due to a small decline in revenue. Publishing and other cost
of revenue increased by $768,000 due to higher costs for the national publication, The Knot Weddings
Magazine, as a result of increased distribution and higher costs for both our national and local print
publications as a result of increased advertising page counts. As a percentage of our net revenues, cost
of revenues decreased to 22% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 27% in the prior year. This
overall margin improvement resulted from a greater mix of higher margin online advertising revenue
and the increased margins for merchandise revenue.

Product and Content Development

Product and content development expenses consist primarily of payroll and related expenses for
editorial, creative and information technology personnel and computer hardware and software costs.

Product and content development expenses increased to $6.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 as compared to $5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Personnel and
related expenses increased by $728,000 due to additional investments in editorial, creative and
information technology staff, and we incurred expenses of $286,000 relating to our referral-based online
dating service acquired in January 2005. In 2005, we also incurred additional content costs of $152,000
for The Knot TV, a new streaming video channel on The Knot website, which we launched in February
2005, as well as information technology consulting costs of $155,000 and costs of approximately $120,000
in connection with the relocation of a significant portion of our information technology function to
Austin, Texas. As a percentage of our net revenues, product and content development expenses
increased to 13% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 12% for the year ended December 31,
2004. :

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of payroll and related expenses for sales and
marketing, customer service and public relations personnel, as well as the costs for promotional
activities and fulfillment and distribution of merchandise.

32




Sales and marketing expenses increased to $14.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, as
compared to $12.1 million for the yellclr ended December 31, 2004. In September 2004, we entered into a
settlement agreement with America Online, Inc. (“AOL”) w1th respect to amounts owed to AOL under
the Amended and Restated Anchor Tenant Agreement effective July 23, 1999 between The Knot
and AOL. As a result of the settle‘ment we made a cash payment of $1.2 million to AOL, and we
reversed the portion of a previously %ecorded liability to AOL that was in excess of the amount paid for
which we recorded a non-cash bene“ﬁt of $1.2 million as a reduction of sales and marketing expense.
Personnel and related costs 1ncrea$‘ed by $880,000 in 2005 as a result of additional investments in
national sales staff as well as customer service and operations staff to support the growth of our local
vendor base. We incurred higher salés commissions and incentives in 2005 of $692,000 as a result of the
increases in online advertising and print revenue. These increases, as well as small increases in a number
of other cost categories, were offset, in part, by reduced costs in 2005 of $1.0 million at our warehouse
and fulfillment center in Redding, California as a result of various cost savings initiatives and the scaling
back of our wholesale operations. As a percentage of our net revenues, sales and marketing expenses
decreased to 28% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 29% for the year ended December 31,

2004.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of payroll and related expenses for our
executive management, finance and administrative personnel, legal and accounting fees, facilities costs,
insurance and bad debt expenses.

General and admlmstratlve expenses increased to $14.5 million for the year ended December 31,

1ncrementa1 legal costs of $2.0 million in 2005, primarily related to our current litigation with
WeddingChannel.com, Inc. We reco‘rded additional non-cash services expense of $546,000 in 2005
associated with a warrant issued in|October 2004 to Allen & Company LLC for financial advisory
services. Personnel and related costs|increased by $213,000 to support the growth of our business, and
we incurred $123,000 in fees in connection with our re-listing on the Nasdaq National Market in March
2005. As a percentage of our net rex“zenues general and administrative expenses increased to 28% for

the year ended December 31, 2005 from 27% for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Depreciation and Amortization

|

Depreciation and amortization éxpenses consist of depreciation and amortization of property and

equipment and capitalized software

Depreciation and amortization e
2005, from $817,000 for the year en

increase in capital expenditures over

new e-commerce platform which lau

Interest Income

Interest income, net of interest

and amortization of intangible assets related to acquisitions.

xpenses increased to $1.3 million for the year ended December 31,
ded December 31, 2004. The increase was primarily due to an
calendar years 2004 and 2005, including the investment in our

nched in July 2005.

expense, increased to $763,000 for the year ended December 31,

2005, from $300,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was primarily the result of

higher funds available for investmed}

Provision for Taxes on Income

For the years ended December

$265,000 and $139,000, respectively, p
continue to utilize net operating loss

] ) .
and higher interest rates.

31, 2005 and 2004, we were subject to income tax expense of
rimarily due to operating income generated in certain states. We
carryforwards for federal income tax purposes.
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Years Ended December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003

Net revenues increased to $41.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $36.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Online sponsorship and advertising revenues increased to $17.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, as compared to $12.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Revenue from
local vendor online advertising programs increased by $3.6 million or approximately 44% primarily as a
result of an increase in the number and average spending of local vendor clients. In addition, there was
an increase of approximately $1.6 million in national online sponsorship and advertising revenue due to
a continuing increase in the number of national advertisers. Sponsorship and advertising revenues
amounted to 43% of our net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 34% of our net
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003,

Merchandise revenues decreased to $13.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, as
compared to $15.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This decrease was primarily due to a
decrease in sales of wedding supplies through our websites of $2.2 million, or by approximately 16%.
Merchandise revenue in 2004 has been affected by the leveling of our new membership growth, and we
also believe there is further competition developing online with respect to the sale of wedding supplies
products. Revenue for the year was further impacted by certain operational difficulties during the first
quarter of 2004 affecting customer service performance, which arose from the installation of new
warehouse management software at our Redding, California facility. In addition, site performance issues
impacted merchandise revenue in May. We have also conducted a review of our wholesale customer
base, which accounted for approximately 12% of our wedding supplies revenue in 2004, and we have
eliminated a number of marginal accounts. Merchandise revenues amounted to 32% of our net
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 42% of our net revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2003.

Publishing and other revenues increased to $10.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, as
compared to $8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Local print revenue increased by $1.4
million due primarily to an increase in advertising pages sold in comparable markets, including revenue
associated with the local section of our national magazine, and a small increase in pricing. The increase
also included $239,000 due to the timing of publication in one local market. National print revenue
derived from The Knot Weddings Magazine increased by $350,000 as a result of the sale of a larger
number of advertising pages and an increase in the number of copies sold. National print revenue in
2004 also includes an additional $269,000 in revenue from our Destination Weddings brochure which we
distribute directly to our members. Publishing and other revenue amounted to 26% of our net revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 24% of our net revenues for the year ended December 31,
2003. '

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues consists of the cost of merchandise sold, including outbound shipping costs, the
costs related to the production of regional magazines and our national magazine, payroll and related
expenses for our personnel who are responsible for the production of online and offline media, and
costs of Internet and hosting services.

Cost of revenues decreased to $11.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $11.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This was primarily due to a decrease in the cost of
revenues from the sale of merchandise of $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2003, as a result of lower sales of wedding supplies. This
decrease was offset, in part, by an increase in advertising cost of revenue of $212,000 as a result of
increased bandwidth costs while publishing and other cost of revenue increased by $235,000 as a result
of an increase in national and local print revenue due, in part, to higher advertising pages sold. As a
percentage of our net revenues, cost of revenues decreased to 27% for the year ended December 31,
2004, from 32% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The margin improvement resulted primarily
from a greater mix of higher margin online sponsorship and advertising revenue. Merchandise margins
have decreased in 2004 as a result of higher shipping costs and additional product promotions while
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publishing margins have improvec\% as a result of the growth of national and local print revenue
combined with production cost savings initiatives.

Product and Content Development

Product and content developm
editorial, creative and information

Fnt expenses consist primarily of payroll and related expenses for
technology personnel.

Product and content develop
December 31, 2004, as compared to

ment expenses increased to $5.2 million for the year ended

$4.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Personnel and
related expenses increased by $4571000 due to additional investments in information technology staff.
The balance of the increase resulte“‘ld primarily from additional costs to upgrade computer equipment
and expenses associated with our current e-commerce platform project. As a percentage of our net
revenues, product and content development expenses increased to 12% for the year ended

December 31, 2004, from 11% for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses]consist primarily of payroll and related expenses for sales and
marketing, customer service and pu\l‘blic relations personnel, as well as the costs for advertising and
promotional activities and fulfillment and distribution of merchandise.

Sales and marketing expenses increased to $12.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004,
from $11.4 million for the year en%ied December 31, 2003. In September 2004, we entered into a
settlement agreement with America ?nline, Inc. (“AOL”) with respect to amounts owed to AOL under
the Amended and Restated Ancho% Tenant Agreement effective July 23, 1999 between The Knot
and AOL. As a result of the settlei‘inent, we made a cash payment of $1.2 million to AOL, and we
reversed the portion of a previously recorded liability to AOL that was in excess of the amount paid for
which we recorded a non-cash benefit of $1.2 million as a reduction of sales and marketing expense.
Personnel and related costs increasec%i by $862,000 as a result of investments in personnel to better sell
our e-commerce product offerings, additional staff at our warehouse and fulfillment center in Redding,

o . . I . .
California and increases in our customer service and operations staff to support the growth of our local

revenue streams. We incurred higher sales commissions of $615,000 in 2004 as a result of increased

. . . \
online advertising and national and|

increased by $173,000 as a result of t
of our net revenues, sales and marke
2004, from 31% for the year ended

General and Administrative

local print revenue. Facility costs in Redding, California have
he move into our new and expanded warehouse. As a percentage
ing expenses decreased to 29% for the year ended December 31,
December 31, 2003.

enses consist primarily of payroll and related expenses for our

General and administrative expe
executive management, finance and administrative personnel, legal and accounting fees, facilities costs,
insurance and bad debts.

General and administrative expenses increased to $11.1 million for the year ended December 31,
. 2004, from $7.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase was due to higher legal fees
related to our current litigation with|WeddingChannel.com, Inc., of $3.0 million. For the year ended
December 31, 2004, we also incurred additional recruiting costs of $294,000 for additional senior
management and other staff persom“lel and small increases in several other cost categories. As a
percentage of our net revenues, general and administrative expenses increased to 27% for the year
ended December 31, 2004, from 20%” for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization
equipment and capitalized software a

consists of depreciation and amortization of property and
nd amortization of intangible assets related to acquisitions.

creased slightly to $817,000 for the year ended December 31,
ed December 31, 2003,

Depreciation and amortization d«
2004, from $858,000 for the year end

35




Interest and Other Income

Interest and other income, net of interest expense, increased to $300,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2004, from $102,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was primarily
the result of higher cash balances available for investment and higher interest rates.

Provision for Taxes on Income

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we were subject to income tax expense of $139,000 due to
operating income generated in certain states. No federal income tax has been provided as we had a
taxable loss for the year.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Shared-Based Payment, which establishes
standards for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. This
standard requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an
award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. This eliminates the
exception to account for such awards using the intrinsic method previously allowable under APB
Opinion No. 25. SFAS 123(R) will be effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2006.

SFAS 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its requirements using one of the following two
methods: '

1. A “modified prospective” method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the
effective date (a) based on the requirements of SFAS 123(R) for all shared based payments granted
after the effective date and (b) based on the requirements of FASB 123 for all awards granted to
employees prior to the effective date of SFAS 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective date.

2. A “modified retrospective” method which includes the requirements of the modified prospective
method described above, but also permits entities to restate based on the amounts previously
recognized under FASB 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures either () all prior periods presented
or (b) prior interim periods of the year of adoption.

We plan to adopt FASB 123(R) using the modified-prospective method.

As permitted by FASB 123, we currently account for shared-based payments to employees
using APB Opinion 25’ intrinsic value method and, as such, generally recognize no compensation cost
for employee stock options. Accordingly, the adoption of SFAS 123(R)’ fair value method will have a
significant impact on our results of operations, although it will have no impact on our overall financial
position. The impact of the adoption of SFAS 123(R) will depend on levels of share-based payments
granted in the future and the rate of cancellation of unvested grants. However, had we adopted
SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of
FASB 123 as described in the disclosure of pro forma net income and earnings per share in Note 2 to
our consolidated financial statements. We currently believe that stock-based compensation expense for
the calendar year ended December 31, 2006 related to share-based payments granted prior to January 1,
2006 and unvested as of that date, or which may be granted during 2006, including the grant of rights to
purchase shares under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan, will range from $1.5 to $1.9 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2005, our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments amounted to $29.2
million. We currently invest primarily in short-term debt instruments that are highly liquid, of high-
quality investment grade, and have maturities of less than three months, with the intent to make such
funds readily available for operating purposes.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $7.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.
This resulted primarily from the net income for the year of $4.0 million, depreciation, amortization,
non-cash services expense and stock-based compensation of $2.0 million, a decrease in accounts
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receivable, net of deferred revenue
card usage by local vendors and an
These sources of cash were offset, in

A of $247,000 due to improved collection efforts and further credit
increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $1.3 million.
part, by an increase in inventory of $211,000. Net cash provided by

operating activities was $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This resulted primarily from

the net income for the year of $1.3 Ilfhl

accounts receivable, net of deferred

illion, depreciation and amortization of $817,000 and a decrease in
revenue, of $750,000 due to improved collection efforts and an

increase in credit card usage by locaul vendors and, in part, due to the timing of billings for local print
advertising. These sources of cash were offset by an increase in merchandise inventory of $216,000 and a
decrease in accounts payable and acerued expenses of $1,582,000. In September 2004, we entered into a

settlement agreement with AOL w
Restated Anchor Tenant Agreement
the settlement, we made a cash pay

ith respect to amounts owed to AOL under the Amended and

effective July 23, 1999 between The Knot and AOL. As a result of
ment of $1.2 million to AOL, and we reversed the portion of a

previously recorded liability to AOﬂ that was in excess of the amount paid for which we recorded a

non-cash benefit of $1.2 million in t

Net cash provided by investing
and consisted primarily of proceeds
million offset, in part by purchases

[
|

he third quarter of 2004.

activities was $5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005

from the sale of short-term investments, net of purchases, of $8.0
of property and equipment of $1.6 million and cash paid for the

acquisition of the business and assets of GreatBoyfriends LLC of $621,000. Net cash used in investing
activities was $1.1 million for the yea# ended December 31, 2004 and consisted primarily of purchases of
property and equipment. We currently believe that purchases of property and equipment for the
calendar year ended December 31, 2006 will increase to between $2.5 million and $3.0 million as a result

of the planned acquisition of addltIOI]”

systems in connection with the deve

Net cash provided by financin
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respe
stock in connection with the exercis
Stock Purchase Plan,

Since our inception in May 1996,
experienced annual operating losse

.
4

al computer hardware and software to establish secondary back-up
lopment of a formal disaster recovery plan.

activities was $1.3 million and $506,000 for the years ended
ctively, primarily due to proceeds from the issuance of common
> of stock options and purchases of stock through our Employee

with the exception of calendar years 2005, 2004 and 2003, we have
5; and we have an accumulated deficit of $42.2 million as of

December 31, 2005. We believe that
working capital and capital expend

expectation is primarily based on int‘

hur current cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund our
iture requirements for at least the next twelve months. This

‘:rnal estimates of revenue growth, as well as continuing emphasis

on controlling operating expenses. However, there can be no assurance that actual costs will not exceed

|

amounts estimated, that actual revenues will equal or exceed estimated amounts, or that we will sustain

profitable operations, due to signific

Contractual Obligations and Commitm

We do not have any special pur
which are described below, we do n

In the ordinary course of busin

business partners principally for magazine production,

bandwidth.

As of December 31, 2005, we h
As of December 31, 2005, we ha

to approximately $4.3 million.

At December 31, 2005, other lon
recognize rent expense on a straight-li

ant uncertainties surrounding our estimates and expectations.

ents

'poses entities or capital leases, and other than operating leases,
ot engage in off-balance sheet financing arrangements.

ess, we enter into various arrangements with vendors and other

[ . .
inventory purchases, host services and

lad no material commitments for capital expenditures.
|

d commitments under non-cancelable operating leases amounting

g term liabilities of $505,000 substantially represented accruals to
ine basis over the respective lives of three of our operating leases

under which rental payments increase over the lease periods. These accruals will be reduced as the

operating lease payments, summarized in the table of contractual obligations below, are made.
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Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2005 are summarized as follows:
Payments due by Period

Less than 1 1-3 3.5 More than §
Contractual Obligations Total year years years years
(in thousands)
Long term debt .......ooovviievieeeiieiieeiinnn... $ 153 $ 47 $ 106 $— $—
Operating leases ..........coviiiiiiiiiiinininna, 4,281 840 1,532 1,151 758
Purchase commitments ...........coeovveeinnnnnen. 1,670 1,216 454 — —
Total ... e e $6,104 $2,103 $2,092 $1,151 $758

Seasonality

We believe that the impact of the frequency of weddings from quarter to quarter results in lower
merchandise revenues in the first and fourth quarters.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact the financial position, results of operations,
or cash flows of the Company due to adverse changes in financial market prices, including interest rate
risk, foreign currency exchange rate risk, commodity price risk, and other relevant market rate or price
risks.

We are exposed to some market risk through interest rates related to the investment of our current
cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments of approximately $29.2 million as of December 31,
2005. These funds are generally invested in highly liquid debt instruments. As such instruments mature
and the funds are re-invested, we are exposed to changes in market interest rates. This risk is not
considered material, and we manage such risk by continuing to evaluate the best investment rates
available for short-term, high quality investments.

We have no activities related to derivative financial instruments or derivative commodity
instruments, and we are not currently subject to any significant foreign currency exchange risk.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
THE KnoT, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Knot, Inc. (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005.
Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were
not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’ internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, -assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated
results of its operations and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

ErNST & YOUuNG LLP

New York, New York
February 21, 2006

40




CONS

ASS

Current assets: -
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

|

THE KNOT, INC.
OLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

....................................

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $379,464 and $627,589

at December 31, 2005 and D
Inventories

Deferred production and marketi

Other current assets

Total current assets .......
Property and equipment, net .
Intangible assets, net
Other assets

...................

Total assets

...............

LIABILITIES AND STO
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued e

Deferred revenue..............

ecember 31, 2004, respectively

CKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current portion of long-term debt ...,

Total current liabilities ...
Long term debt
Other liabilities................

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies .
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; no

shares issued and outstandmg

Common stock, $.01 par value;

100,000,000 shares, authorized;

23,049,416 shares and 22 ,264,962 shares issued and outstandmg

at December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively

Additional paid-in capital......
Deferred compensation
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity .

e,

...................................

...................................

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity.......................

See accompanying notes.
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December 31,
2005 2004

$ 17,685,067 $ 3,487,818

11,550,000 19,550,000
4,804,581 3,151,549
1,622,056 1,410,697

419,555 269,536
881,114 726,434

36,962,373 28,596,034
2,986,354 2,467,736
9,110,269 8,634,136

325,927 295,796

$ 49,384,923  § 39,993,702

$ 5574078 $ 4,181,486

7,816,435 5,910,021
46,651 42,898
13,437,164 10,134,405
105,906 152,557

504,565 504,554
14047635 10,791,516

230,494 222,649
77,550,250 75,154,287

(221,034) —
(42222,422)  (46,174,750)
35,337,288 29,202,186

$ 49,384,923  $ 39,993,702




THE KNOT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Net revenues:

Online sponsorship and advertising .................... $25,843,823  $17,624,309 $12,462,452

Merchandise . ......oooiiiiriii e 12,591,433 13,064,373 15,510,269

Publishing and other .............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiin.... 12,973,666 10,708,980 8,724,226
Total Net TEVENUES ...\ttt iit i ie i it e e iieanaans $51,408,922 $41,397.662 $36,696,947
Cost of revenues:

Online sponsorship and advertising .................... $ 805800 $ 658451 §$§ 446,479

Merchandise .......c.vniiiiei et eiaiaaannnns 6,062,608 7,020,686 8,041,269

Publishing and other ..., 4,233,079 3,465,139 3,229,909
Total cost Of TEVENUES . ...vivtvtir i enriaiieereanens $11,101,487 $11,144276 $11,717,657
Gross Profit. .. .oeteeii i et e e 40,307,435 30,253,386 24,979,290
Operating expenses:

Product and content development ..................... 6,878,633 5,161,334 4,221,174

Sales and marketing ......... ... oot 14,212,268 12,068,118 11,367,857

General and administrative ............cooviiiiiiein... 14,491,332 11,091,942 7,522,421

Depreciation and amortization......................... 1,271,221 817,285 858,360
Total operating €Xpenses ........ocvveiiiiveineniienninennes 36,853,454 29,138,679 23,969,812
Income from operations.................ooiiiiiiiii, 3,453,981 1,114,707 1,009,478
Interest INCOME, NEL.....oiirrr e iiiiereeirennnnnes 763,296 299,775 102,333
Income before income taxes ..........ceeiviiiiieniinnnnn.. 4,217,277 1,414,482 1,111,811
Provision for income taxes.......o.vviveeiiinireenreaanen.. 264,949 139,482 50,000
NEt INCOIMIE vttt tet ettt ettt e et eaiines $ 3952328 §$ 1,275,000 $ 1,061,811
Net earnings per share—basic ................c.oiiiinnn, $ 017 § 0.06 $ 0.06
Net earnings per share—diluted ........................... $ 016 § 0.05 § 0.05
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

BaSIC it e e 22,715,724 22,073,885 18,900,861

Diluted . oo e e 24,878,652 23,650,408 20,308,658

See accompanying notes.
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THE KNOT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31,2002 ..................
Issuance of common stock in connection with a
private placement, net of costs of
approximately $628,000.......................
Issuance of common stock in connection with
exercise of vested stock options...............
Issuance of common stock in connection with
employee stock purchase plan ................
Stock-based compensation ......................
Reversal of deferred compensation related to
common stock options forfeited ...............
Net income for the year ended December 31,
2003 . ..

Balance at December 31,‘ 2003.........0 e,

Issuance of common stock in connection with
exercise of vested stock options...............
Issuance of common stock in connection with
employee stock purchase plan ................
Non-cash services expense related to the issuance
of a warrant in connection with financial
adVISOTY SEIVICES .. ...ttt iniiiaainnannnnns
Net income for the year ended December 31,
2004 . ..

Balance at December 31, 2004 ..................

Issuance of common stock in connection with
exercise of vested stock options...............
Issuance of common stock in connection with
employee stock purchase plan ................
Issuance of restricted common stock.............
Non-cash services expense related to the issuance
of a warrant and options in connection with
financial advisory and other consulting services
Stock-based compensation ......................
Net income for the year ended December 31,
2005 . . e e

Dt Siock  CommonSock gl Dtomes  Accumed Sk
—_ $ — 18,373,327 $183,733 $64,399,894 $ (54.835) $(48,511,561) $16,017,231
—~ ~— 2,800,000 28,000 9,844,000 —_ — 9,872,000
— — 501,873 5,019 294,864 _ — 299,883
— — 59,750 597 16,140 —_ —_ 16,737
— — —_ —_ —_ 32,623 _ 32,623
— — — — (22,212) 22,212 —_ —
_ __ — — — — 1,061,811 1,061,811
— $ — 21,734952 $217,349 $74,532,686 $ - $(47,449,750) $27,300,285
— — 459,486 4,595 507,772 —_ —_ 512,367
— — 70,524 705 57,985 — — 58,690
— — — — 55,844 — — 55,844
— — — — — — 1,275,000 1,275,000
- $ — 22264962 $222,649 $75,154,287 $ — $(46,174,750) $29,202,186
— —_ 713,115 7,131 1,236,595 —_ -— 1,243,726
—_— — 36,339 364 126,419 —_ — 126,783
— — 35,000 350 281,400 (281,400) —_ 350
—_ - — — 751,549 — — 751,549

60,366 60,366
_ . —_ — _— — 3,952,328 3,952,328
— $ — 23,049,416 $230,494 $77,550,250 $(221,034)  $(42,222,422) $35,337,288
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Operating activities

THE KNOT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2005

2004 2003

INEE IOCOIIIE . e\ttt ettt et e et et e e et et e ae et a e e e e e e e e eeenennn $ 3,952,328 $ 1,275,000 $ 1,061,811
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities: ,
Depreciation and amortization...............ooiiiiii i, 1,130,776 717,285 758,360
Amortization of intangibles.......... ... oo 140,445 100,000 100,000
Stock-based cOMPensation ... ......uuieur it 60,366 _ 32,623
Non-cash Services XPenSe ... ... vt irtient ittt 716,549 55,844 —
Reversal of distribution fee payable ... —  (1,200,000) —
Reserve for returms. ... o i e 2,073,559 1,787,691 1,523,832
Allowance for doubtful accounts ..o (50,178) 71,307 51,414
Other non-cash (income) Charges........ovvutvriieieiinnenenninnnnnenns (14,419) 101,134 16,764
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (net of business acquired): :
Restricted cash.......oooiiirii — — 251,871
AcCCounts receivable .. ... e e (3,676,413)  (2,127,763) 333,428
TVentOrIES . . o e e (179,950) (307,772) 96,369
Deferred production and marketing costs .............ccoiiiiiiii.n, (150,019) 48,367 125,599
Other CUITENt @SSELS ...\ v ene ettt ettt taanieaenaes (154,680) 21,033 (191,109)
L@ 1117 g - 4,869 16,945 38,829
Accounts payable and accrued exXpenses .............oiiiiiiiiiinin.. 1,295,701 (381,634) 647,208
Deferred revenUE ...ttt e e e e s 1,900,024 1,018,591 (936,002)
Other Habilities ..o v i i i i e et e i e 11 14,351 45,115
Net cash provided by operating activities. ....................... 7,048,969 1,210,379 3,956,612
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment ............coiiuiieiniiienineininenienn, (1,558,226) (1,189,661) (827,739)
Purchases of short-term investments ............coeiiiiniieninenininenenenenn. (18,150,000) (22,800,000) (13,550,000)
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments .............ccoviieiiiiinnnnnn. 26,150,000 22,900,000 1,000,000
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired ................ ..o (621,105) — (38,400)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities............... 5,820,669  (1,089,661) (13,416,139)
Financing activities
Repayment of current portion of long term borrowings....................... (42,898) (39.,446) (99,274)
ISSUANCE COSES .« ettt ittt ettt e et et et a e e ee e e — (25,536) (602,464)
Proceeds from issuance of common StOCK . ....oovvivieiiiie i innnennns 126,783 58,690 10,516,737
Proceeds from exercise of stock Opfions ............viiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiia 1,243,726 512,367 299,883
Net cash provided by financing activities ........................ 1,327,611 506,075 10,114,882
Increase in cash and cash equivalents................... ... il 14,197,249 626,793 655,355
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year............................... 3,487,818 2,861,025 2,205,670
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year................ .ot $17685067 §$ 3,487.818 $ 2,861,025

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest......

Cash paid for income taxes

Year Ended December 31,

2008
................................................... $ 16,164
................................................... $ 173,000

See accompanying nofes.
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NOTES TO CO!

1. Organization and Nature of Oper

The Knot, Inc. (the “Company’’
|

THE KNOT, INC.

NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2005

ations

) was incorporated in the state of Delaware on May 2, 1996.

The Company is a lifestage medi? and services company providing products and services to couples
planning their weddings and future lives together. The Company’s website, at www.theknot.com, offers

|

comprehensive content, extensive wedding-related shopping, an online wedding gift registry and an

|

active community. The Company publishes The Knot Weddings Magazine, which is distributed to

newsstands and bookstores across thei
magazines in 16 markets in the Uni
markets. The Company also authors l:
launched its newlywed website, The 1\

nation. The Company also publishes The Knot Weddings regional
ted States and The Knot Real Weddings in two additional local
ooks on wedding related topics. In November 2004, the Company
est, at www.thenest.com. The Company also operates the websites

www.greatboyfriends.com and www. gr‘Fatgirlﬁiends.com, which are referral-based online dating services.
The Company is based in New York and has several other offices across the country.

Since its inception in May 1996, with the exception of calendar years 2005, 2004 and 2003, the
Company has experienced annual operating losses and has an accumulated deficit of $42,222 422 as of
December 31, 2005. The Company bfﬂheves that its current cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient
to fund its working capital and capltal expenditure requirements for at least the next twelve months.
This expectation is primarily based ‘on internal estimates of revenue growth, as well as continuing
emphasis on controlling operating expenses However, there can be no assurance that actual costs will
not exceed amounts estimated, that actual revenues will equal or exceed estimated amounts, or that the
Company will sustain profitable operations, due to significant uncertainties surrounding its estimates
and expectations.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statem
subsidiaries. All significant intercomp

ents include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned

| . ..
any accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

Preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Interim results are not
necessarily indicative of results for a full year.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable
approximate fair value due to the stﬁort-term nature of these instruments. The carrying amounts of
outstanding borrowings approximate fair value.

|

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents were approximately $16,233,000 and $2,267,000 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respel:tively. The market value of the Company’s cash equivalents
approximates their cost plus accrued |interest.
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Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments represent investments in auction rate securities which have interest rate
resets every 90 days or less but maturity dates of greater than 90 days. The auction rate securities are
classified as available-for-sale and are carried at cost, which approximates market value.

Inventory

Inventory consists of finished goods and raw materials. Inventory costs are determined principally
by using the average cost method and are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Deferred Production and Marketing Costs

Deferred production and marketing costs include certain magazine and online video production
costs and prepaid sales commissions which are deferred and expensed as the related revenue is
recognized.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets which range from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter
of their estimated useful lives or the term of the related lease agreement.

Goodwill, Other Intangible and Long-Lived Assets

Goodwill is the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identified net assets of businesses
acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but
instead are subject to annual-impairment tests in accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and
long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Other intangible assets are amortized over their
respective useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances such
as significant declines in revenues, earnings or cash flows or material adverse changes in the business
climate indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may be impaired. Recoverability of assets to be
held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to future estimated
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If the assets are considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of
the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. As of December 31, 2005, no impairment has occurred.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes on the liability method as required by SFAS No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequence attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in results of operations in the
period that includes the enactment date.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues |from the sale of online sponsorship and advertising contracts, from
the sale of merchandise and from the publication of magazines.

Online sponsorship programs a‘re designed to integrate advertising with online editorial content.
Sponsors can purchase the exclusive|right to promote products or services on a specific online editorial

area and can purchase a special feeuxture on the Company’s sites. These programs commonly include
banner advertisements and direct ﬁ:mall marketing. Sponsors can also promote their services and
products within the programming o“n the Company’s streaming video channel, The Knot TV.

Online advertising includes online banner advertisements and direct e-mail marketing as well as
placement in the Company’s online\ search tools. This category also includes online listings, including

preferred placement and other prenH11um programs, in the local area of the website for local wedding
vendors. Local vendors may purchase online listings through fixed term contracts or open-ended

subscriptions.

Certain elements of online sponsorship and advertising contracts provide for the delivery of a
minimum number of impressions. Ir%pressions are the featuring of a sponsor’s advertisement, banner,
link or other form of content on thel Company’s sites. To date, the Company has recognized applicable
online sponsorship and advertising revenues over the duration of the contracts on a stralght -line basis,
as it has exceeded minimum guaranteed impressions. To the extent that minimum guaranteed
impressions are not met, the Compa”ny is generally obligated to extend the period of the contract until
the guaranteed impressions are achie‘lved If this were to occur, the Company would defer and recognize
the corresponding revenues over the extended period.

Merchandise revenues generallyl include the selling price of wedding supplies and products from the
Company’s gift registry sold through its websites as well as related outbound shipping and handling
charges since the Company is the pr1mary party obligated in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk

and establishes its own pricing and selection of suppliers. Merchandise revenues also include
commissions earned in connection with the sale of products from the Company’s gift registry under
agreements with certain retail partn]ers where the Company is not primarily obligated, not subject to
inventory risk and amounts earned are determined using a fixed percentage. Merchandise revenues are

recognized when products are shlpp‘ed to customers, reduced by discounts as well as an allowance for
estimated sales returns. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, merchandise revenue
included outbound shipping and \handlmg charges of approximately $1,800,000, $1,556,000 and
$1,756,000, respectively.

Publishing revenue includes print advertising revenue derived from the publication of The Knot

Weddings Magazine, the publication ”of regional magazines, The Knot Weddings and other publications,

as well as fees from the license of the Weddingpages name for use in publication by certain former
franchisees. These revenues and fees are recognized upon the publication of the related magazines, at
which time all material services related to the magazine have been performed, or as fees are earned
under the terms of license agreeme&ts Additionally, publishing revenues are derived from the sale of
magazines on newsstands and in gookstores and from author royalties received related to book
publishing contracts. Revenues frox% the sale of magazines are recognized when the products are

shipped, reduced by an allowance ﬁ‘or estimated sales returns. Author royalties, to date, have been
derived from publisher royalty advances that are recognized as revenue when all of the Company’s
contractual obligations have been met which is typically upon the delivery to, and acceptance by, the

publisher of the final manuscript.

For contracts with multiple elements, including programs which combine online and print
advertising components, the Compal\\ly allocates revenue to each element based on evidence of its fair
value. Evidence of fair value is the normal pricing and discounting practices for those deliverables when
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sold separately. The Company defers revenue for any undelivered elements and recognizes revenue
allocated to each element in accordance with the revenue recognition policies set forth above.

Revenue for which realization is not reasonably assured is deferred.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents payments received or billings in excess of revenue recognized related
to online and print advertising contracts.

Adbvertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled approximately $134,000,
$148,000 and $114,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. Cash and cash equivalents are
deposited with three major financial institutions. The Company’s customers are primarily concentrated
in the United States. The Company performs on-going credit evaluations, generally does not require
collateral, and establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit
risk of customers, historical trends and other information.

At December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, no single customer accounted for more than 7%
and 8% of accounts receivable, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is accounted for by using the intrinsic value-based method in accordance
with the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and related interpretations, and the Company complies with the disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation as amended by SFAS No. 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure. Accordingly, the Company only
records compensation expense for any stock options granted with an exercise price that is less than the
fair market value of the underlying stock at the date of grant. The Company does not record
compensation expense for rights to purchase shares under its Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”)
because it satisfies certain conditions under APB 25.
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The following table details the
compensation expense been recorded
(see Note 10).

effect on net income and earnings per share had stock-based
based on the fair value method under SFAS No. 123, as amended

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

$ 3,952,328 § 1,275,000 $1,061,811

Net income, as reported ..
Add: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense in¢luded in

reported net income ... ... ... ... 60,366 — 32,623
Deduct: Total stock-based employee

compensation expense determined under

fair value method for alljawards......... (1,032,620) (1,079,251)  (588,692)
Net income, pro forma ...}................ $2980,074 $ 195749 $ 505,742
Basic earnings per share, as reported ...... $ 017 § 0.06 3 0.06
Basic earnings per share, pro forma ....... $ 013 § 001 $ 0.03
Diluted earnings per share, as reported.... § 016 § 005 § 0.05
Diluted earnings per share, pro forma ..... $ 012 § 0.01 $ 0.02

The fair value for options and ESPP rights granted have been estimated on the date of grant using
the minimum value method option pricing model from inception through December 1, 1999, the day
prior to the Company’s initial pubhc‘offenng of its common stock, and using the Black-Scholes pricing
model thereafter. ‘

For purposes of pro forma c{hsclosures the estimated fair value of stock-based employee
compensation is amortized to expense over the related vesting period and valuation allowances are

[
included for net deferred tax assets‘

Earnings Per Share
The Company computes earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per

Share.” Basic earnings per share is c
of common shares outstanding durin
share for the effects of stock options,

financial instruments, only in the |

omputed by dividing net income by the weighted average number
g the period. Diluted earnings per share adjusts basic earnings per
restricted common stock, warrants and other potentially dilutive
periods in which such effect is dilutive. For the years ended

December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the weighted average number of shares used in calculating diluted
earnings per share include stock optlons restricted common stock and warrants to purchase common
stock of 2,162,928, 1,576,523 and 1 407 798 respectively. The calculations of earnings per share for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 exclude the weighted average number of securities listed

below because to include them in t

Options to purchase comm
Common stock warrant.. .|

Segment Information

The Company operates in one T

offline media and e-commerce service lines. These service lines do not have operating managers who

report to the chief operating decisi
financial information at a consolidat
revenue results of the individual se

on maker. The chief operating decision maker generally reviews

he calculation would be antidilutive.
Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
on stock.......... 32,000 356,000 737,000
.................. — 463,000 438,000

32,000 819,000 1,175,000

2portable segment as it is generally organized around its online and

cd results of operations level but does review revenue and cost of
rvice lines.
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Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income establishes standards for reporting and displaying
comprehensive income and its components in a full set of general purpose financial statements. The
Company’s comprehensive net income is equal to its net income for all periods presented.

Software Development Costs

The costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use are being amortized over
their estimated useful lives, which has been determined by management to range from one to three
years. Amortization of software development costs begins when the software is ready for its intended
use.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Shared-Based Payment, which establishes
standards for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. This
standard requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an
award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. This eliminates the
exception to account for such awards using the intrinsic method previously allowable under APB
Opinion No. 25. SFAS 123(R) will be effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2006.

SFAS 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its requirements using one of the following two
methods:

1. A “modified prospective” method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the
effective date (a) based on the requirements of SFAS 123(R) for all shared based payments granted
after the effective date and (b) based on the requirements of FASB 123 for all awards granted to
employees prior to the effective date of SFAS 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective date.

2. A “modified retrospective” method which includes the requirements of the modified prospective
method described above, but also permits entities to restate based on the amounts previously
recognized under FASB 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures either (a) all prior periods presented
or (b) prior interim periods of the year of adoption.

The Company plans to adopt FASB 123(R) using the modified-prospective method.

As permitted by FASB 123, through December 31, 2005, the Company accounted for shared-based
payments to employees using APB Opinion 25’s intrinsic value method and, as such, generally
recognized no compensation cost for employee stock options. Accordingly, the adoption of SFAS
123(R)’s fair value method will bave a significant impact on its results of operations, although it will
have no impact on its overall financial position. The impact of the adoption of SFAS 123(R) will depend
on levels of share-based payments granted in the future and the rate of cancellation of unvested grants.
However, had the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of that standard would
have approximated the impact of FASB 123 as described in the disclosure of pro forma net income and
earnings per share in this Note 2. The Company currently believes that stock-based compensation
expense for the calendar year ended December 31, 2006 related to share-based payments granted prior
to January 1, 2006 and unvested as of that date, or which may be granted during 2006, including the
grant of rights to purchase shares under its Employee Stock Purchase Plan, will range from $1.5 to $1.9
million.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation.
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3. Inventory

Inventory consists of the following:
December 31,

2005 2004
Raw materials............. 1 .............................. $ 215940 $ 139,660
Finished goods ......... .0 i 1,406,116 1,271,037

$1,622,056 $1,410,697

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:
December 31,

2008 2004
Leasehold improvements .. |........c...c.oiiiiiiiiiian., $1,502,423 $1,498,260
Software ... e 2,189,611 1,936,407
Furniture and fixtures . .. .. PR 235174 218,866
Computer and office equipment.......................... 3,708,682 3,061,733
$7,635,890 $6,715,266
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ......... 4,649,536 4,247,530

$2,986,354  $2,467,736

5. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consists of the /following:
December 31,

2005 2004

Goodwill, net ........... ..o $8,904,714  $8,409,136

Covenant not 10 COMPEte . J...ovveeiiirnrerenrnrnnrnennns 700,000 700,000

Less accumulated amortizatﬁon ........................... (575,000)  (475,000)

Covenant not to compete, Iﬁet ............................ 125,000 225,000
Trademarks and domain names ....................... ... 100,000 —
Less accumulated amortizati“on ........................... (19,445) —
Trademarks and domain names, net...................... 80,555 —
Subscriber base ‘\ .............................. 21,000 —
Less accumulated amortization ........................... (21,000) —
Subscriber base, net....... ... i e — —

Total ........ccvven.n. T $9,110,269  $8,634,136

In January 2005, the Company acquired the business and assets of GreatBoyfriends LLC (See
Note 14).

The Company completed its most recent goodwill impairment test as of October 1, 2005. The test
primarily involved the assessment of the fair market value of the Company as the single reporting unit.
No impairment of goodwill was indicated at that time. Under SFAS No. 142, the Company is required
to perform goodwill impairment tests{ on at least an annual basis or more frequently if circumstances
dictate. There can be no assurance that future goodwill impairment tests will not result in a charge to
income.

51




THE KNOT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)
December 31, 2005

The covenant not to compete is being amortized over the related contractual period of seven years.
Trademarks and domain names are being amortized on a straight-line basis over five years. Subscriber
base was amortized on an accelerated basis over six months.

Amortization expense was $140,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 and $100,000 for each of
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. Estimated annual amortization expense is $120,000 in
calendar year 2006, $45,000 in calendar year 2007, $20,000 in each of calendar years 2008 and 2009 and
$1,000 in calendar year 2010.

6. Accounts Payable and Accrned Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:
December 31,

2005 2004

Accounts payable ..........oiiiiiiiiii i $1,971,455 $1,085,841
Professional SErVICES. . .o..vr e vnrireirieariieneanenanans, 1,198,788 1,218,252
Compensation and related benefits ....................... 1,030,129 921,939
Other accriied XPENSES «.vvvvveervnininninenraenirnenens 1,373,706 955,454

$5,574,078 $4,181,486

7. Long Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:
December 31,

2005 2004
Note due in annual installments of $60,000 through October
2008, based on imputed interest of 8.75% ................. $152,557 $195,455
Less current portion ... ....c..veuereerneenieueiieenionneneens $ 46,651 § 42,898
Long term debt, excluding current portion .................. $105,906 $152,557

Maturities of long-term obligations during the three years ending December 31, 2008 are as follows:
2006, $46,651; 2007, $50,733 and 2008, $55,173. Interest expense was approximately $15,000, $20,000 and
$30,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

8. Relationships with Related Parties

America Online, Inc. (“AOL”)

On July 23, 1999, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Anchor Tenant Agreement
with AOL (the “AOL Agreement”). Pursuant to the AOL Agreement, the Company issued a warrant
to purchase 366,667 shares of the Company’s common stock at $7.20 per share, subject to certain anti-
dilution provisions. As of December 31, 2005, the effect of these anti-dilution provisions was to reduce
the exercise price under the warrant to $5.70 per share and to increase the number of shares that may
be purchased to 462,835. The warrant is immediately exercisable and expires in July 2007.

In September, 2004, the Company entered into an Agreement of Settlement and Mutual Release
(the “Settlement”) with AOL, pursuant to which the Company made a cash payment of $1.2 million
to AOL constituting full and final settlement of amounts due with respect to the Amended and
Restated Anchor Tenant Agreement effective July 23, 1999. As a result of the Settlement, the Company
reversed the portion of a previously recorded $2.4 million liability to AOL that was in excess of the
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|

sh benefit of $1.2 million as a reduction of sales and marketing

On April 13, 1999, the Company sold 4,000,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

(“Series B”) for $15 000,000 to QVC
basis upon the Company’s initial pu
to QVC Interactive Holdings, LLC
(“ITH”). The Company also entered
whereby QVC provided warehousin
the Company’s gift registry product:
basis. The Services Agreement with
option to continue to operate un
discontinued QVC’s services and b
facility to service gift registry produ

For the years ended Decembe
incurred warehousing, fulfillment,
with QVC in the aggregate amount

' The Series B stock converted into common stock on a one-for-one
blic offering of common stock. The common stock was assigned
, subsequently renamed Interactive Technology Holdings, LLC
into a Services Agreement with QVC (the “Services Agreement”),
g, fulfillment and distribution, and billing services with respect to
. The fees for such services were negotiated on an arm’s length
QVC expired in December 2003 however, the Company had the
der the agreement for an additional 180 days. The Company
egan to use its Redding, California warehouse and distribution
cts in May 2004.

r 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company purchased merchandise and
distribution and billing costs under the Services Agreement

Hs of $33,000 and $123,000, respectively.

On January 31, 2005, in connectlon with the dissolution of ITH, the shares of common stock of the

Company held by ITH were distribu

Comcast Corporation

Under royalty-free license agre!
Online, the Company provides video

ted to Comcast QIH, Inc., an affiliate of Comcast Corporation.

ements with Comcast Cable Communications, LLC and Comcast

-on- -demand programming content and editorial content for use by

these affiliates of Comcast Corporatlon in connection with their cable and online properties. The

Company entered into these agreements to build further brand recognition for The Knot.

Federated Department Stores, Inc.

‘( “Federated”)

On February 19, 2002, the Company entered into a Common Stock Purchase Agreement (the

“Agreement”) with May Bridal, an affiliate of May Department Stores Company, pursuant to which the
Company sold 3,575,747 shares ofH its common stock to May Bridal for $5,000,000 in cash. The
Agreement provided that if the Company proposed to sell, transfer or otherwise issue any common or
preferred stock or other interest convertlble into common stock (“equity interests”) to any third party
(other than shares previously reser\H/ed or certain shares which shall be reserved for future issuance
pursuant to Stock Incentive Plans approved by the Board of Directors or stockholders of the Company)
and which transaction would dilute May Bridal’s interest in the common stock or voting power of the
Company prior to such transaction b”y more than one percentage point, then the Company would offer
May Bridal the nght to acquire a similar equity interest, on the same terms and conditions as offered to
the third party, in such amount as t(”) preserve its percentage interest in the common stock and voting
power of the Company. If the Company proposed to acquire any equity interest from a third party,
which transaction would result in May Bridal’s interest in the common stock or voting power of the
Company exceeding 20%, then the Company would offer to acquire equity interests from May Bridal
on the same terms as offered to the third party, to permit May Bridal to own less than 20% of the
common stock or voting power of th[= Company after the transaction. In addition, under an amendment
to the Agreement dated November‘ 11, 2003, so long as May Bridal owned more than 10% of the
common stock or voting power of the Company, May Bridal would have the right to designate one
member of the Board of Directors

of the Company and to nominate and submit such person for

53




THE KNOT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)
December 31, 2005

election by the stockholders of the Company. May Bridal waived its right to acquire equity interests in
connection with the sale of common stock by the Company in November 2003 (see Note 9).

The Company also entered into a Media Services Agreement with May pursuant to which the
Company and May develop integrated marketing programs to promote and support those May
department store companies that offer wedding registry services. The Media Services Agreement, as
amended, had an initial term of three years expiring in February 2005 and may be automatically
extended for up to three additional one-year terms unless terminated by May. In November 2004 and
2005, the Media Services Agreement was automatically extended through February 2006 and February
2007, respectively.

May Bridal was merged into May in January 2005. Federated acquired May through a merger
effective August 30, 2005.

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded revenues under the
Media Services Agreement in the amounts of $292,000, $488,000 and $253,000, respectively. In addition,
the Company recorded revenue under other advertising agreements with May affiliates and with certain
Federated affiliates subsequent to August 30, 2005, which aggregated $932,000, $535,000 and $406,000
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had recorded receivables in connection with the
Media Services Agreement and the other agreements with May and Federated affiliates of $340,000 and
$99,000, respectively.

9. Capital Stock

The Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides for 105,000,000
authorized shares of capital stock consisting of 100,000,000 shares of common stock each having a par
value of $0.01 per share and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, each having a par value of $0.001.

Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors is authorized, without further stockholder approval, to issue from time to
time up to an aggregate of 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix or alter
the designations, preferences, rights, and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions, of the shares of
each series thereof, including the dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rights, voting rights, terms
of redemption, including sinking fund provisions, redemption price or prices, liquidation preferences
and the number of shares constituting any series or designation of series.

Common Stock

At December 31, 2005, the Company had reserved the following shares of common stock for future
issuance:

Options under the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan .......................... 4,906,010
Options under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan .......................... 304,418
Common StOCK WaITANTS ... ..ottt ittt ittt iraaneeennn 682,835
Shares under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan ...................... 263,661

Total common stock reserved for future issuance .................. 6,156,924
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Private Placement of Common Stock

On November 20, 2003, the Company completed the sale of 2,800,000 shares of common stock to
two institutional investor groups for gross proceeds of $10,500,000. Net proceeds after placement fees
and other offering expenses were $9/872,000.

Issuance of Warrant |

In October 2004, the Company retained Allen & Conipany LLC (“Allen”) as a financial advisor for
a period of two years with respect to|various matters. In consideration for Allen’s services and a cash
payment of $1,100, the Company issued warrants to Allen to purchase 220,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock at $3.79 per share, sub]ect to certain anti-dilution prov151ons 132,000 of these warrants
were vested on issuance and 1mmedH1ately exercisable. The remaining warrants vested and became
exercisable in October 2005. The warrants expire in October 2010. The Company valued the warrants
which vested on issuance at $335,000 By using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with an expected
volatility factor of 71.4%, risk free interest rate of 3. 57% ., no dividend yield and the contractual life of
six years. The value of the remaining warrants were reassessed quarterly until vested in October 2005.
At that time, these warrants were valued at $854,000 by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with an expected volatility factor of 6”7 7%, risk free interest rate of 4.45%, no dividend yield and the
remaining contractual life of five years. The total value of the warrants are being expensed over the
related service period of two years. In 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded approximately $603,000
and $56,000, respectively, of non- cash} services expense associated with these warrants.

10. Stock Plans

The 1999 Stock Incentive Plan \.the “1999 Plan”) was adopted by the Board of Directors and
approved by the stockholders in November 1999, as a successor plan to the Company’s 1997 Long Term
Incentive Plan (the “1997 Plan”). All optlons under the 1997 Plan have been incorporated into the 1999
Plan, and no further option grants will be made under the 1997 Plan. The 1999 Plan became effective
upon completion of the Company’s 1ﬁ1t1al public offering of its common stock.

Under the terms of the 1999 Plan, 3,849,868 shares of common stock of the Company were initially
reserved for incentive stock optlons‘ nonquahﬁed stock options (incentive and nonqualified stock
options are collectively referred to as “options™), stock issuances, or any combination thereof. On
May 15, 2001, the Company’s stockholders approved a further increase of 1,000,000 to the number of
shares reserved for issuance under the}‘ 1999 Plan. Through December 31, 2005, an additional 1,835,711
shares were added to the reserve pursbant to the automatic share increase provisions of the 1999 Plan.
Awards may be granted to such non [employee directors, officers, employees and consultants of the
Company as the Compensation Comm&xttee of the Board of Directors shall in its discretion select. Only
employees of the Company are elxglbleT: to receive grants of incentive stock options. The shares reserved
under the 1999 Plan automatically increase on the first trading day in January of each calendar year by
an amount equal to two percent (2%) of the total number of shares of the Company’s common stock
outstanding on the last trading day of\‘ December in the prior calendar year, but in no event will this
annual increase exceed 1,000,000 shares (or such other lesser number determined by the Board of
Directors). Generally, options are granted at the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant

|
which was determined by the Board of]
offering of its stock in December 1999.
exceed 10 years.

During 1998 and 1999, the Con‘
subsequently determined to be less tha
As a result, the Company recorded def

Directors prior to the completion of the Company’s initial public
Options vest over periods up to four years and have terms not to

pany granted certain options with exercise prices that were
n the value for financial reporting purposes on the date of grant.
erred compensation of approximately $2,948,000, net of reversals
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of stock options forfeited. This amount was recognized as non-cash compensation expense on an
accelerated basis over the vesting period of the options, including $32,623 for the year ended
December 31, 2003.

The 2000 Non-Officer Stock Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan”) was approved by the Board of
Directors in June 2000. Under the terms of the 2000 Plan, 435,000 shares of common stock of the
Company have been reserved for nonqualified stock options, stock issuances or any combination
thereof. Awards may be granted to employees (other than officers or directors of the Company) and
consultants and other independent advisors who provide services to the Company. Options are granted
at the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant. Generally, options vest over a four-year period
and have terms not to exceed 10 years.

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) was adopted by the Board of Directors and
approved by the stockholders in November 1999 and became effective upon completion of the
Company’s initial public offering of its common stock. Under the ESPP, employees of the Company who
elect to participate are granted options to purchase common stock at a 15 percent discount from the
market value, as defined, of such stock. The ESPP permits an enrolled employee to make contributions
to purchase shares of common stock by having withheld from his or her salary an amount between 1
percent and 15 percent of compensation. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
administers the ESPP. 300,000 shares of common stock of the Company were initially reserved for
issuance under the ESPP. The shares reserved automatically increase on the first trading day in January
of each calendar year by the lesser of the (i) the number of shares of common stock issued under the
ESPP in the immediately preceding calendar year, (ii) 300,000 shares or (iii) such other lesser amount
approved by the Board of Directors. Through December 31, 2005, 305,203 shares were issued under the
ESPP and 268,864 were added to the reserve pursuant to the automatic increase provision.

The following represents a summary of the Company’s stock option activity under the 1999 and
2000 Plans and related information:

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding at December 31, 2002 ..., 3,109,822 $1.67
Options granted ....... ..ottt e 990,200 2.81
OPtioNS EXEICISEA . .o\ttt iee ittt e a e (501,875) 0.60
Options canceled ...t e e (296 ,475) 3.06
Options outstanding at December 31, 2003 ............ ..o, 3,301,672 $2.05
Options granted .............. e e e e e e 682,500 4.10
OPptions €XErciSed. ... .o..ouiuoninii e e e (459,486) 1.12
Options canceled ....................... e e e (179,765) 3.00
Options outstanding at December 31,2004 ....................coiiia... 3,344,921 $2.55
Options granted ............. e e e e e e e 120,000 5.16
Options eXerCiSEd. ... .ut ettt et e (703,115) 1.75
Options canceled ... ... e (246,057) 521
Options outstanding at December 31, 2005 ........... ... iiiiiiiiine. 2,515,749 $2.63
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The following table summarizes

Range of exercise price

$0.31 to $1.03
$1.37 to $4.10
$4.80 to $9.00

At December 31, 2005, there wer
and 270,418 shares available for the
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information about options outstanding at December 31, 2005:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Number Remaining  Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding  Contractual  Average  Exercisable  Average
as of Life Exercise as of Exercise
12/31/05 (In Years) Price 12/31/05 Price
........ 703,328 5.29 $0.74 695,693  $0.74
......... 1,582,021 6.82 3.08 1,175,725 291
......... 230,400 8.67 5.35 85,954 6.04
2,515,749 6.56 $2.63 1957372 $2.28

e 2,424,261 shares available for future grants under the 1999 Plan
2000 Plan.

The per share weighted average |
2004 and 2003, respectively. The per s

falr value of options granted were $2.42, $2.22 and $1.62 in 2005,
hare weighted average fair value of ESPP rights were $2.25, $2.00

and $0.94 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectwely The fair value for options and ESPP rights granted have
been estimated on the date of grant using the minimum value method option pricing model from

inception through December 1, 1999
the following range of assumptions:

Expected option lives
Risk-free interest rate
Expected volatility
Dividend yield

During the year ended December

an employee and two non- employeq
related stock-based compensation ex;

and using the Black-Scholes option pricing model thereafter, with

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
............ 1.25-3.25 years 1.25-4 years  1.25-4 years
............ 3.25%-3.71% 2.89%-327% 1.66%-2.27%
............ 63.2% 67.1% 76.4%
............ 0% 0% 0%

31, 2005, the Company issued 35,000 shares of restricted stock to
directors and recorded deferred compensation of $281,400 and

pense of $60,000.

In January 2005, the Company issued options to acquire 50,000 shares of common stock at $4.80

per share to a consultant. The options
at $120,000 by using the Black-Sch
of 67.1%, risk free interest rate of 3.2:
valuation of the unvested options is

vest over three years. The Company initially valued these options
oles options pricing model with an expected volatility factor

5%, no dividend yield and the contractual life of three years. The

adjusted quarterly, and the total value of the options is being

expensed over the service period of tl%

ree years. In 2005, the Company recorded approximately $114,000

of non-cash services expense associated with these options.

\
See Note 2 for the Company’s ac‘
on net income and net income per|

counting policy for stock based compensation, as well as the effect
share had compensation for the stock plans been determined

consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended.

11. 401(k) Plan
In June 2003, the Company adop

ted a 401(k) plan covering all eligible employees and provides for

a Company match on a portion of pTrticipant contributions. Employees may contribute up to 15% of
their base salary, subject to IRS maﬁ(imums. The Company matches 25% of the first 4% of eligible
compensation contributed. The Company’s matching contributions are made in cash and amounted to

$76,000 for each of the years ended
December 31, 2003.

December 31, 2005 and 2004 and $33,000 for the year ended
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12. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for income tax
purposes.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards.......................... $ 14,340,000 $ 15,447,000
Depreciation and amortization............................ 2,040,000 1,986,000
Accrued EXPenSeS. ... .vuitiiiiiei i — 127,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts and reserve for returns 116,000 216,000
(07117=5 G DR 588,000 306,000
Total deferred tax @SSETS .. .vvvevirerereerninernreenieennnensn 17,084,000 18,082,000
Deferred tax liabilities:
Capitalized software costs................... PO (1,087,000) (785,000)
1 71 1T (1,034,000) (398,000)
Total deferred tax liabilities ...t (2,121,000)  (1,183,000)
Net deferred tax assets......cvveviiiiieeniinerenanieneeennnns 14,963,000 16,899,000
Valuation allowance .........coviiiriiiieinrnenernennaniiinens (14,963,000)  (16,899,000)
Total net deferred tax @SSELS ..vvvivrrivrennerrireinnesannsen $ — $§ —

Net deferred tax assets have been fully offset by a valuation allowance due to the uncertainty of
realizing such benefit. As of December 31, 2005, deferred tax assets of approximately $906,000 would be
accounted for as additional paid-in-capital if recognized.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $36
million for federal tax- purposes which are set to expire in years 2011 through 2024.

The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the U.S. federal statutory rate to income tax
expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows;

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2004 2003
Income taxes at federal statutory rate (35%) .................. $ 1,476,000 $ 495,000 $ 389,000
State income taxes, net of federal benefit...................... 153,000 90,000 33,000
Expenses not deductible for U.S. tax purposes................. 86,000 66,000 75,000
Change in valuation allowances and other ..................... (1,450,000) (512,000) (447,000)
Provision fOr iNCOME tAXES . ... v vttt iiiiireineiainns .. § 265000 § 139,000 § 50,000
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13. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases office faci \ities and certain warehouse space under noncancelable operating
lease agreements which expire at various dates through 2012. Future minimum lease payments under

) \
noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

Year ending December 31:

2006 .0+ en e $ 840,000
2007..............5 ....................................... 820,000
2008 . .t 712,000
2009. .00, TR 566,000
2010 . ... rrnn., ISR 585,000
Thereafter ....... TR 758,000
Total ............ o, $4,281,000

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 amounted to approximately
$894,000, $867,000 and $798,000, respectively. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over

the respective life of each operating lease.

|
Sublease income for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 amounted to approximately

$15,000 and $24,000, respectively.

Legal Proceedings

On September 19, 2003, WeddingChannel.com, Inc. (“WeddingChannel”) filed a complaint against
the Company in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. The complaint
alleges that the Company has violat”ed U.S. Patent 6,618,753 (“Systems and Methods for Registering
Gift Registries and for Purchasing Glfts”) and further alleges that certain actions of the Company gwe
rise to various federal statute, state” statute and common law causes of actions. WeddingChannel is
seeking, among other things, damages and injunctive relief. If the Company is found to have willfully
infringed the patent-in-suit, enhanced damages may be awarded. This complaint was served on the -

Company on September 22, 2003.

Based on information currently %Vailable the Company believes that the claims are without merit
and is vigorously defending itself against all claims. On October 14, 2003, the Company filed an answer
and counterclaims against WeddlngChannel The Company’s answer raises various defenses to the
counts alleged by WeddingChannel. \]Addltlonally, the Company has brought counterclaims including a
request that the court declare that the patent-in-suit is invalid, unenforceable and not infringed. On
April 15, 2005, WeddingChannel sper‘lﬁed that they were seeking damages in an amount ranging from
approximately $1,100,000 to in excess of approximately $13,000,000 plus interest. The Company has -
raised defenses to WeddingChannel’s patent and other claims, which, if successful, would obviate or
substantially limit any potential damages payments. WeddingChannel has also requested unspecified
damages in connection with other claims set forth in its complaint.

The Company has filed a series jof summary judgment motions seeking to dismiss entirely and/or
limit WeddingChannels claims for ‘patent infringement, and WeddingChannel filed certain “cross-
motions” for summary judgment concernmg certain of the Company’s defenses. These motions were
argued before the Court on September 28 and October 19, 2005, and have not yet been decided. On
January 17, 2006, a stay was entered in the litigation between the Company and WeddingChannel for a
period of not less than 60 days, upo:p the joint request of the parties. If the stay is lifted, and if the
Company’s motions are unsuccessful and some portion of WeddingChannel’s patent infringement claims

remain, the case may go to trial in the second quarter of 2006.
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Because the Company believes the claims are without merit, management does not believe that the
outcome will have a material impact on the operations or results of the Company; and the Company has
not recorded a contingency for this litigation. However, if the Company’s answer and its defenses do not
succeed or if its counterclaims are found to be without merit, or if the Company determines to settle
this litigation at a later date, the Company could suffer harm to its business and a material adverse
effect to its financial condition and results of operations.

The Company is engaged in other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business and
believes that the ultimate outcome of these actions will not have a material effect on its results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.

14. Acquisition

In January 2005, the Company acquired the referral-based online dating services business and
assets of GreatBoyfriends LLC, including the websites GreatBoyfriends.com and GreatGirlfriends.com,
for $600,000 in cash. The cost of the acquisition, including related legal fees, was allocated to the assets
and liabilities acquired based upon their estimated fair values as follows: '

Working capital ... $ (6,390)
Property and equipment ..............ooiiiiiiiiian 10,917
Subscriber base ... e 21,000
Trademarks and domain names ....................... 100,000
Goodwill ... e 495,578
17 Y $621,105

The acquisition would not have had a material impact with respect to the consolidated results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 had the acquisition been consummated on January 1,
2004.

15. Agreement with Collages.Net, Inc. (“Collages™)

In March 2005, the Company entered into a Marketing Services Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Collages, a provider of hosting and website development services to professional photographers.
Under the Agreement, which has a term of three years, the Company delivers online and print
advertising services to Collages in exchange for having received Collages Series A Preferred Stock,
which vests over the first two years of the Agreement. Through December 31, 2005, the fair value of the
marketing services to be provided over the term of the Agreement approximated the fair value of
Series A Preferred Stock received.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company has earned approximately $400,000 in revenue pursuant to
the Agreement. The Company has deferred recognition of this revenue since the realization of the
resulting asset, representing an equity investment in Collages, is not reasonably assured.
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts .|...
Allowance for Returns.............

Year Ended December 31, 2004

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts .|...
Allowance for Returns.............

Year Ended December 31, 2003

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts .|...
Allowance for Returns.............

Write-Offs,
Balance Charged to Charged to Net of
Beginning Costs and Other Recoveries &
of Year Expenses Accounts Actual Returns
$410,869 $ (50,178) $— $ 86,712
$216,720  $2,073,559 $— $2,184,794
$414335 § 71,307 $— $ 747773
$200,597 $1,787,691 $— $1,771,568
$774222 $§ 51414 $— $ 411,301
$186,001 $1,523,832 $— $1,509,236
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Balance at
End of
Year

$273,979
$105,485

$410,869
$216,720

$414,335
$200,597




Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as that term is defined
in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange
Act), as of December 31, 2005. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that the Company files or submits
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and to ensure that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the year
ended December 31, 2005 identified in connection with the evaluation thereof by the Company’s
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control ever financial
reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None

PART I

Item 10. Directors and Executive Olfficers of the Registrant

Incorporated by reference from the information in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders which we will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120
days of the end of the calendar year to which this report relates.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference from the information in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders which we will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120
days of the end of the calendar year to which this report relates.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Cer
Stockholder Matters

tain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table summariz

December 31, 2005. All outstanding
about our equity compensation plan

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders ....

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders ....

(1) Includes 462,835 shares of commo

prior to our initial public offering

es information about our equity compensation plans as of
awards relate to our common stock. For additional information
5, see notes 8, 9 and 10 to our financial statements in Item 8.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Weighted-average
future issuance under equity

Number of securities to exercise price of

be issued upon exercise outstanding compensation plans
of outstanding options, options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column)(a)
(a) (b) (c)
2,481,749 $2.6159 2,424,261
716,835(1) $5.0329 270,418
3,198,584 $3.1576 2,694,679

d stock to be issued upon exercise of a warrant issued in July 1999,
and 220,000 shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of

a warrant issued in October 2004 in connection with the receipt of financial advisory services.

I

The other information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from the

information in our proxy statement fo
the Securities and Exchange Commis:

report relates.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and

Incorporated by reference froml
Meeting of Stockholders which we w
days of the end of the calendar year

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees
Incorporated by reference from

r the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders which we will file with

ion within 120 days of the end of the calendar year to which this

Related Transactions
the information in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual

ill file with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120

to which this report relates.

and Services
the information in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders which we wﬁill file with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120
days of the end of the calendar year to which this report relates.

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Sta

(a) 1. Financial Statements.
See Index to Consolidated
2. Financial Statement Sche
See Index to Consolidated
(b) Exhibits

Number

2.1 —Agreement and Plan of Merg
Weddingpages, Inc. (Incorpo

filed on February 11, 2000)

3.1
Registrant’s Registration St;
“Form S-1"))

3.2

4.1

4.2 —See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for

Registrant

tement Schedules

Financial Statements and Schedule on page 37.
dules.
Financial Statements and Schedule on page 37.

Description

er, dated as of February 1, 2000, by and among the Registrant and
rated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K

—Amended and Restated Certlﬁcate of Incorporation (Incorporated by reference to the

atement on Form S-1 (Registration number 333-87345) (the

—Amended and Restated Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

\

—Specimen Common Stock certificate (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

\
provisions defining the rights of holders of common stock of the
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Number Description

4.3
4.4

4.5

4.6

10.3*

10.4*

10.5%*

10.6*

10.7*
10.8

—Warrant Agreement of America Online, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

—Subscription Agreement by and between The Knot and T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. on
behalf of its participating clients specified therein, dated as of November 18, 2003
(Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3
(Registration number 333-111060) (the “Form S-3"))

—Subscription Agreement by and between The Knot and investment funds advised by Capital
Research and Management Company, dated as of November 18, 2003 (Incorporated by
reference to the Form S-3)

—Warrant Certificate issued to Allen & Company LLC on October 27, 2004 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 21, 2005)

—Employment Agreement between The Knot, Inc. and Richard Szefc (Incorporated by
reference to the Form S-1)

—Employment Agreement between The Knot, Inc. and Sandra Stiles (Incorporated by reference
to the Form S-1)

—2000 Non-Officer Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration number 333-41960))

—Amended and restated 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration number 333-74398))

—Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

—Third Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement (Incorporated by reference to the
Form S-1)

10.11*—Form of Indemnification Agreement (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

10.12

10.13

10.14

211

23.1
311

312

321

322

—Common Stock Purchase Agreement between The Knot, Inc. and May Bridal Corporation
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
on March 29, 2002)

—Amendment to Common Stock Purchase Agreement between The Knot and May Bridal
Corporation, dated as of November 11, 2003 (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-3)
—Agreement of Settlement and Mutual Release between The Knot, Inc. and America Online,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K

filed on March 21, 2005)

—Subsidiaries

—Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

—Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-
14(a), As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

—Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), As Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

—Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, As
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

—Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, As Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

+ Confidential treatment has been granted for certain portions omitted from this Exhibit pursuant to
Rule 406 promulgated under the Securities Act. Confidential portions of this Exhibit have been
separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Pursuant to the requirements of

SIGNATURES
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

as amended, The Knot, Inc. has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authonzed in the City of New York, State of New York, on this 17th

day of March, 2006.

Pursuant to the requirements of
has been signed by the following pe
on March 17, 2006.

Signature

/s DaviD Liu

Tue KnoT, INC.

By: /s/f DAVID Liu
David Liu
President and Chief Executive Officer

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report

rsons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated

Title(s)

President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

David Liu

/s! RICHARD SZEFC

of the Board of Directors (principal executive
officer)

Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary

Richard Szefc

/s/ SANDRA STILES

(principal financial and accounting officer)

Chief Operating Officer, Assistant Secretary and

Sandra Stiles

/s/ CHARLES BAKER

Director

Director

Charles Baker

/s/ LisA GERSH

Director

Lisa Gersh

/s/ MATTHEW STRAUSS

Director

Matthew Strauss

/s/ ANN WINBLAD

Director

Ann Winblad
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Number Deseription

21

31

32
4.1
42

43
44

4.5

4.6

10.3*

10.4*

10.5%

10.6*

10.7*
10.8

—Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 1, 2000, by and among the Registrant and
Weddingpages, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on February 11, 2000)

—Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (Incorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration number 333-87345) (the
“Form S-17))

—Amended and Restated Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)
—Specimen Common Stock certificate (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

—See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions defining the rights of holders of common stock of the
Registrant

—Warrant Agreement of America Online, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

—Subscription Agreement by and between The Knot and T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. on
behalf of its participating clients specified therein, dated as of November 18, 2003
(Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3
(Registration number 333-111060) (the “Form S-37))

—Subscription Agreement by and between The Knot and investment funds advised by Capital
Research and Management Company, dated as of November 18, 2003 (Incorporated by
reference to the Form S-3)

—Warrant Certificate issued to Allen & Company LLC on October 27, 2004 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 21, 2005)

—Employment Agreement between The Knot, Inc. and Richard Szefc (Incorporated by
reference to the Form S-1)

—Employment Agreement between The Knot, Inc. and Sandra Stiles (Incorporated by reference
to the Form S-1)

—2000 Non-Officer Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration number 333-41960))

—Amended and restated 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration number 333-74398))

—Employee S tock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

—Third Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement (Incorporated by reference to the
Form S-1)

10.11*—Form of Indemnification Agreement (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-1)

10.12

10.13

10.14

211

231
311

—Common Stock Purchase Agreement between The Knot, Inc. and May Bridal Corporation
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
on March 29, 2002)

—Amendment to Common Stock Purchase Agreement between The Knot and May Bridal
Corporation, dated as of November 11, 2003 (Incorporated by reference to the Form S-3)

—Agreement of Settlement and Mutual Release between The Knot, Inc. and America Online,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on March 21, 2005)

—Subsidiaries
—Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

—Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Exchange Act
Rule 13a-14(a), As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Number Description

31.2 —Certification of Chief F1nan01al Officer Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), As Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 —=Certification of Chairman aJd Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, As
Adopted Pursuant to Sectlon 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 —Certification of Chief F1nanc1a1 Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, As Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of ‘the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

T Confidential treatment has been gganted for certain portions omitted from this Exhibit pursuant to
Rule 406 promulgated under the Securities Act. Confidential portions of this Exhibit have been
separately filed with the Securities land Exchange Commission.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
The Knot, Inc.

462 Broadway, Floor 6

New York, NY 10013

(212) 219-8555 phone

(212) 2191929 {fax

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Copies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 are
available without charge, upon request;

investor Relations Department

The Knot, Inc.

462 Broadway, Floor 6

New York, NY 10013

Email: ir@theknot.com

STOCK SYMBOL
Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol KNOT.

MARKET PRICE CF COMMON STOCK
The following table sets forth the range of intra-day high and low sale prices over the last
calendar year for our common stock:

For the quarter ended: High Low

December 31,2005 $1439 $9.84
September 30,2005 75 3670
June 30,2005 $997  $594
March 31,2005 $750  $4.55

We have neither declared nor paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our inception
and do not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future.

As of April 14, 2006, the approximate number of stockholders of record of our common stock
was 141 and the number of beneficial holders of our common stock was 7,208. The number of
beneficial holders includes those persons whose stock is in nominee or “street name” accounts
through brokers.

COMPANY INFORMATION ON THE WEB

Current information about The Knot and our subsidiaries, press releases and investor information
(including details about the annual meeting, the annual report and corporate governance policies)
are available on our website located at www.theknot.com.

GENERAL COUNSEL
Proskauer Rose LLP
1585 Broadway

New York, NY 10036

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Ernst & Young LLP

5 Times Square

New York, NY 10036

TRANSFER AGENT

American Stock Transter & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Please refer to the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations in Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, which accompanies and is part of
this Annual Report, for a discussion related to forward-looking statements in this Annual Report.

TRADEMARK INFORMATION

The Knot, The Knot Registry, Wedding Supplies Direct, The Nest, GreatBoyfriends, GreatGirlfriends,
PromSpot, PartySpot and The Knot Real Weddings are registered trademarks and/or service marks of
The Knot, Inc. Other trademarks and service marks appearing in this Annual Report are property of
their respective holders.

Ths tenst

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAYID LY

Chefrmanof ¥ie Beard,

Chhiel Exseviive Offieer end Presiclnt
The Knet, lne.

SANBRA STILES
Chief Cperating Cieer
and Aselidlent Seeretary
The Kaek, Ine,

CHARLES BARER
Senfer Vies President and
Cliief Firaneiz] Ofieer
Menster Werlhvide, Ine.

LISA GERSH
Brestdont and Chicl Opersfing Offfesr
The Cryren Nelwerk

MATTHEW STRAUSS
Whes Presidont of Content Development

ANN WINBLAD
(EehenalPantner
Rrommee Whnbled Venture Pertners

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

DAVID LIV
Chefrman ol the Beard,
Gl Enseuiive Offficer and Prosident

SANPRA STILES
Chhits! Opereting Offiesr

RICHARD SZEFE
Cliiel) Finanetel Offeer
Treasurer and Seerstary

ARMAND® CARDENAS-NOLAZE®
Chife! Technelogy Offear




H WEDDINGS FOR THE REAL WORLD

WWWIHEKNOTCOM

The Knst, lne, 462 , Floar &, New Yorls, NY 10013 | Phone: 212.210.8585

ecverohotodi Klel\vana)



